
Board of Directors Meeting 
501 Comfort Place, Conference Room A, Mishawaka 

November 20, 2019 
7:15 a.m. 

BOARD BRIEFING BOOK 
Table of Contents 

Agenda .......................................................................................................... 2 

Consent Agenda ............................................................................................ 4 

 Minutes of 08/21/19 ........................................................................... 5 

 Patient Care Policies ........................................................................... 11 

 QI Committee Minutes 09/17/19 ........................................................ 58 

President’s Report ......................................................................................... 64 

 Average Daily Census Charts ............................................................ 81 

 Monthly Dashboard Summary ........................................................... 87 

 Volunteer Newsletters September-November 2019 ........................... 88 

 Committees of the Board of Directors ............................................... 106 

 Attachments to President’s Report ..................................................... 107 

Compliance Committee Minutes 08/22/19 ................................................... 144 

Nominations .................................................................................................. 147 

PAGE - 1



 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 
ONE 

 
AGENDA 

PAGE - 2



                                                
 

 
1-800-HOSPICE             cfhcare.org 

 

501 Comfort Place 
Mishawaka, IN 46545 
(574) 243-3100 
Fax: (574) 243-3134 

112 S. Center St., Ste C 
Plymouth, IN 46563 
(574) 935-4511 
Fax: (574) 935-4589 

22579 Old US 20 East 
Elkhart, IN 46516 
(574) 264-3321 
Fax: (574) 264-5892 

309 W Johnson Rd, Ste A 
La Porte, IN 46350 
(219) 575-7930 
Fax (219) 476-3965 

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Administrative and Foundation Offices 

501 Comfort Place, Room A, Mishawaka IN 
November 20, 2019 

7:15 a.m. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. Consent Agenda – Mary Newbold (10 minutes) 

a) Approval of August 21, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes (action) 
b) Patient Care Policies (action) – Included in your board packet. Sue Morgan available to 

answer questions. 
c) QI Committee (information) – 09/17/19 Minutes are included in your board packet. 

Carol Walker is available to answer questions.   
 
2. President's Report (information) - Mark Murray (15 minutes) 
 
3. Finance Committee (action)  – Tricia Luck (15 minutes) 

A. 2020 Flex Spending Account Limit 
B. YTD October 2019 Financial Statements 
C. 2020 Budget 

 
4. Hospice Foundation Update (information) – Amy Kuhar Mauro (12 minutes) 
 
5. Nominating Committee (action) – Mary Newbold (5 minutes) 

 
6. Board Education (information) – Karl Holderman and Mike Wargo (10 Minutes) “Current 

and Future Planning for Milton Adult Day Services in Roseland and Care Connections at 
Milton Village at that location, fundraising already received, funds that will be needed, and 
the collaboration between CHC, HF, Alzheimer’s and Dementia Services of Northern 
Indiana and REAL Services”  

 
7. Chair’s Report – Mary Newbold (3 minutes) 
 
8. Board Member Recognition – Mary Newbold (5 Minutes) 

 
Next meeting February 19, 2020 

# # # 

PAGE - 3



 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 
TWO 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 

PAGE - 4



Center for Hospice Care  
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

August 21, 2019 
 
Members Present: Amy Kuhar Mauro, Carol Walker, Jennifer Ewing, Jennifer Houin, Jesse Hsieh, Mark Wobbe, 

Mary Newbold, Suzie Weirick, Tim Portolese, Wendell Walsh 
Absent: Andy Murray, Ann Firth, Tricia Luck 
CHC Staff: Mark Murray, Craig Harrell, Dave Haley, Karl Holderman, Mike Wargo, Sue Morgan, Becky Kizer 
 
Topic Discussion Action 
1. Call to Order  The meeting was called to order at 7:15 a.m. 

 Introduced Jennifer Ewing as the new Vice Chair.  
 

2. Minutes  A motion was made to accept the minutes of the 05/15/19 meeting as presented. 
The motion was accepted unanimously. 

A. Mauro motioned 
T. Portolese seconded 

3. Policies  A motion was made to accept the revised policies as presented. The motion was 
accepted unanimously.  

A. Mauro motioned 
T. Portolese seconded 

4. QI Committee  The minutes of the 05/21/19 Quality Improvement Committee Meeting are in the 
board packet to give updates on CHC’s quality indicators and reporting programs.  

 

5. President’s Report  Census – We have been at record levels for some time now. We set an all-time 
record one day census in June of 453. The ADC is up 5% from a year ago. YTD 
ADC 415 and the breakeven is 383. Home health census is up 89%. We serve 
about 11 home health patients a day. We are looking for any patterns on referrals 
to see why we’ve had such a large increase. Generally patients start in home health 
and then change to hospice. Also it could be that our admission department is 
doing a better job getting people into our programs. Through July referrals are up 
2.5%. Both IPUs have been very busy, especially in July. Occupancy was about 
the highest we’ve ever seen. We have been working very hard the past couple of 
years to recover patients in ECFs. The We Honor Veterans vet to vet cafes 
programming has been very beneficial in this regard. July ECF ADC was 146 and 
YTD 136.  

 Medical staffing – We have two new nurse practitioners that were former CHC 
nurses that became NPs. A new doctor started Monday. One of our contracted 

 

PAGE - 5



CHC Board of Directors Meeting – 08/21/19, page 2 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
doctors is retiring at the end of the month and Dr. Gifford, our chief medical 
officer, is retiring at the end of the year. Pacific Companies recruitment agency 
has been the worst agency we’ve ever worked with. We are interviewing another 
doctor today from North Carolina.  

 Clinical Staffing – We are in much better than a couple months ago. We have 
openings for an Elkhart IPU Coordinator, weekend triage nurse, and a La Porte 
case manager. We have a number of staff on FMLA.  

 La Porte Office – We hope to be able to move into the new La Porte office in 
about four weeks. We are still waiting for some furniture, and IT has some minor 
things to install.  

 South Bend move to Mishawaka – This will probably take place the first week in 
October. Raclin House staff will move in mid-November and we will host a ribbon 
cutting ceremony before patients arrive.   

 The Fiscal Year 2020 Hospice wage index final rule was issued on 07/31/19. It 
announces a 2.6% increase in hospice rates, but sequestration takes 2% out of it. 
CMS dramatically increased the rate for Respite and GIP and reduced Routine 
level of care so it is budget neutral. The one in five hospice programs have their 
own inpatient unit are ecstatic, but those that do very little Respite or GIP are 
upset. If the new rates had been in place at the beginning of 2019, it would have 
been $475,000 in additional revenue and annually $950,000. The new rates begin 
10/01/19 for CMS fiscal year 2020. 

 REAL Services, with our assistance, received grants from two foundations totaling 
$1.25M to assist in repurposing our South Bend office to become Milton Village 
adult day services and offices for Alzheimer’s and Dementia Services of Northern 
Indiana (ADSNI). The grants are from the Community Foundation of St. Joseph 
County and the Leighton Foundation. This is not public knowledge. We have 
identified some additional foundations and donors to help create something state 
of the art for Alzheimer’s and Dementia patients. We are bringing in consultants 
from the Netherlands that are experts in this area to make recommendations. 
ADSNI will be a tenant in one part of the building. The architects are working on 
the plans for it.   

 A couple of CHC staff will be giving two presentations at the NHPCO clinical 
conference in November. One is on our pediatric training program and the other is 

PAGE - 6



CHC Board of Directors Meeting – 08/21/19, page 3 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
on our HeartWize and BreatheEazy programs.   

 On July 9th the OIG released two negative reports about hospices Copies of the 
reports are in the board packet and began to tell states to write more hospice 
deficiencies before these reports were published. A lot of it is a rehash of very old 
incidents. The House Ways and Means Committee said CMS should do something 
about hospices. On June 11 we had two surveyors come to the South Bend office 
to investigate four complaints. Two of the complaints were found to be 
unsubstantiated and two substantiated. The home health surveyor made three visits 
with two of our nurses and an aide, and our staff did an excellent job.  

 When the ISDH receives a complaint, they have to investigate every phone call 
even if it seems ludicrous. Three of the four complaint calls came from outside 
Indiana from family members. We think the link between the OIG reports and 
ISDH surveys are not a coincidence. We have never been through something like 
this. Reports are published on the ISDH website, but they are hard to find.  

 We can’t remember a time when an agency was decertified from the Medicare 
program. It has been published that CMS may be hoping to get civil monetary 
penalties like they do with nursing homes. Carol W. said anyone can complain 
about anything and it gets this type of response and takes a lot of staff time. The 
patients and families we are dealing with in health care have escalated 
tremendously what staff have to put up with and are exposed to. We do have 
liability insurance for medical malpractice. Staff knows they can make visits with 
two staff members like a nurse and social worker or can ask for a police escort. 
Occasionally we have to discharge a patient for cause.  

 We encourage you to read the article in the board packet by hospice CEOs 
speaking out on hospice audits and what it means to the industry. It is one of the 
best collection of the issues hospices are facing and why there are so many 
independent hospice CEO job openings and why many are retiring early.  

 Elleah Tooker, HF Community Education Coordinator, is one of the first four 
people in the nation to be NHPCO “MyHospice” ambassadors. 

6. Finance 
Committee 

 The Finance Committee met last Friday. A quorum as not present, but those in 
attendance reviewed the financial statements and recommend they be presented to 
the Board for approval.  

 YTD through July we have served 1,390 patients, which is slightly below a year 

 
 
 

PAGE - 7



CHC Board of Directors Meeting – 08/21/19, page 4 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
ago. YTD ADC is 415 compared to 396 a year ago. The breakeven is 381. YTD 
operating revenue is $13.2M, total revenue $15.7M, total expenses $11.7M, net 
gain $4M, net without beneficial interest $1.7M. On the one hand some physician 
positions have not been filled, but on the flip side receivables are up because we 
don’t have enough physicians to fill out the Medicare paperwork. This is an 
example of how we can do well in keeping expenses low, but it has some effect on 
the revenue side. The increase in census is also a part of that.  

 A motion was made to approve the July 2019 YTD financial statements as 
presented. The motion was accepted unanimously.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
J. Hsieh motioned 
J. Ewing seconded 

7. Hospice 
Foundation 
Update 

 The Crossroads Campaign ended 06/30/19 and raised $12.8M. This does not 
include some additional grants that have been secured, like the previously 
mentioned ones for the remodeling of the Sunnybrook property and programs for 
Milton Adult Day Services and Alzheimer’s and Dementia Services of Northern 
Indiana. This is being done in conjunction with REAL Services. There are four 
other asks out there from two more foundations, a bank fund, and a charitable 
trust. We anticipate the cost of remodeling and new programming to be about 
$3.5M. We would like to begin work at the end of the year once the South Bend 
staff has moved to Mishawaka. This is a fundraising “initiative,” not a campaign. 
Thank you to Tim Portolese for his diligent efforts to bring a $500,000 grant from 
a major donor in Elkhart County to help finish up the Crossroads Campaign.   

 The 2019 Helping Hands Award Dinner honoring Catherine Hiler was the highest 
grossing dinner in its history with $401,000, and the highest net of $334,000.  

 Events – 06/04 was the Elkhart Garden of Remembrance and Renewal event. 120 
people attended the Journeys in Healing art auction on 07/24. A number of 
organizations in the community continue to do third party events for us. The 
Michiana Sodbusters raised $8,200 on May 25-26. This is the largest amount they 
ever raised for us. Over 15 years they have raised $92,000. Old National Bank did 
a Friday jeans event and we were the sole beneficiary of that event. Tom’s Car 
Care in South Bend held its Lube-a-Thon on 07/26. This is the 14th year for this 
event and all proceeds come to CHC. This year they raised $4,000. Bike Michiana 
for Hospice and the Walk for Hospice are on 09/08 at the Mishawaka campus. The 
annual Veterans’ Tribute Ceremony will be on 10/15.  

 Level 5 We Honor Veterans – The WHV program was created by NHPCO and the 

 

PAGE - 8



CHC Board of Directors Meeting – 08/21/19, page 5 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
VA. It is based on staff training on the special end of life needs of veterans. Up 
until February there were only four levels, which we achieved. Now they created a 
Level 5 and we are seeking that too. That is an annual level that we will have to 
maintain.  

 PCAU partnership – The biennial conference is September 5-6 in Kampala, 
Uganda. This year Annette Deguch, bereavement counselor, will be doing a 
presentation on yoga and mindfulness, and Kristiana Donahue, volunteer 
recruitment and training coordinator, will be doing a presentation on volunteer 
program essentials. They were selected by the scientific committee planning the 
conference. Then they will come back and talk about their experiences at a staff 
meeting.  

 Road to Hope has 58 children enrolled. PCAU is also hosting an intern, Kat 
Kostolansky, a University of Notre Dame student who is spending seven weeks in 
Uganda supporting the Road to Hope program.  

 The Mulago School of Nursing and Midwifery diploma program kicked off this 
year. This is an extension of what we had been doing for nine years through the 
International Hospice and Palliative Care Association (IHPCA). Between 2010 
and 2018 we provided funding for 62 students to receive their diploma. Through 
this new training program, we can support scholarships for up to 30 students per 
year instead of 6 or 8. 15 started in February and 15 in August.  

 We have been working with PCAU for several years advocating with the Ministry 
of Health on the mHealth Project. It is now being implemented in 20 facilities 
across the country.  

 Education – Our Center for Education and Advance Care Planning hosted its 
second panel discussion on 06/18 and approximately 25 people attended—the 
highest so far. We are working with Beacon and St. Joseph Health System to 
provide Hospice Foundation of America (HFA) webinars at their locations and 
continuing education credits. We are able to do this with a gift from the Vera Z. 
Dwyer Trust for community education. We are also involved in national outreach 
through Elleah Tooker, our Community Education Coordinator, and taking the 
“MyHospice” program on the road to some facilities.  

 IU School of Medicine (IUSM) – The IUSM has several activities going on. Dr. 
Bunmi Okalami is the new Vera Z. Dwyer Bicentennial Chair of Palliative Care at 

PAGE - 9



CHC Board of Directors Meeting – 08/21/19, page 6 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
the Vera Z. Dwyer College of Health Sciences at IU South Bend. We will be 
meeting with her to share ideas about palliative care certification courses to be 
developed. Dr. Areeba Jawed has been named the recipient of this year’s Vera Z. 
Dwyer Fellowship in Hospice and Palliative Medicine. She is scheduled to rotate 
through CHC 09/22 – 10/05. IU Talk will be held on 10/11. We have 12 seats for 
this one-day workshop at our Mishawaka office. It will provide 6.25 CMEs at no 
charge, although there is a $25 registration fee.    

 Honoring Choices Indiana-North Central – So far we have trained 20 facilitators. 
We have created a new brochure. Michael White is attending training in LaCrosse 
WI to become an Honoring Choices instructor.  

 We plan to hold the ribbon cutting ceremony and open house for the Ernestine M. 
Raclin House in November. 

 Global Partners in Care – See the President’s Report in the board packet for the 
full GPIC report.  

8. Board Education  Nancy DeMaegd, director of Milton Adult Day Services, gave an overview of 
their services for adults in a community environment. They are a community 
based agency that provides respite time for caregivers. They accept Medicaid, VA, 
and private pay. About 37 clients are enrolled, but about 16-17 are there each day. 
They are excited about expanding their programs in their new building and getting 
more clients next year.  

 

Adjournment  The meeting adjourned at 8:35 a.m. Next meeting 11/20 
 
Prepared by Becky Kizer for approval by the Board of Directors on 11/20/19.  
 
 
________________________________________________           _____________________________________________ 
Jennifer Houin, Secretary      Becky Kizer, Recording Secretary 
 

PAGE - 10



PAGE - 11



PAGE - 12



PAGE - 13



PAGE - 14



PAGE - 15



PAGE - 16



PAGE - 17



PAGE - 18



PAGE - 19



PAGE - 20



PAGE - 21



PAGE - 22



PAGE - 23



PAGE - 24



PAGE - 25



PAGE - 26



PAGE - 27



PAGE - 28



PAGE - 29



PAGE - 30



PAGE - 31



PAGE - 32



PAGE - 33



PAGE - 34



PAGE - 35



PAGE - 36



PAGE - 37



PAGE - 38



PAGE - 39



PAGE - 40



PAGE - 41



PAGE - 42



PAGE - 43



PAGE - 44



PAGE - 45



PAGE - 46



PAGE - 47



PAGE - 48



PAGE - 49



PAGE - 50



PAGE - 51



PAGE - 52



PAGE - 53



PAGE - 54



PAGE - 55



PAGE - 56



PAGE - 57



 

Center for Hospice Care 
QI Committee Meeting Minutes 

September 17, 2019 
 

Members Present: Bethany Lighthart, Carol Walker, Craig Harrell, Dave Haley, Deb Daus, Greg Gifford, Holly Farmer, 
Jennifer Ewing, Kim Geese, Larry Rice, Mark Murray, Natalie Barnes, Sue Morgan, Tammy Huyvaert,  
Becky Kizer 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
1. Call to Order  The meeting was called to order at 8:00 a.m.  

 Natalie Barnes was introduced as the new QA/Medical Records Coordinator.  
 

2. Minutes  A motion was made to accept the minutes of the 05/21/19 meeting as presented. The 
motion was accepted unanimously. 

T. Huyvaert motioned 
C. Harrell seconded 

3. HQRP  Hospice Conditions of Participation 418.58 state, “The hospice must develop, 
implement, and maintain an effective, ongoing, hospice-wide data-driven quality 
assessment and performance improvement program.” There are 14 areas we should be 
monitoring, but we are not limited to just these 14 areas. The CoPs show the 
complexity of the organization and that we need to monitor all areas of the agency.  

 Hospice Compare Website – Anyone can look up our organization to see how we 
compare to other hospices nationally. The biggest gap in our CAHPS scores for 
10/01/16 – 09/30/18 were help for pain and symptoms (CHC 72%, national 75%), and 
training family to care for patient (CHC 74%, national 75%). All of our HIS scores for 
the same time period were above the national average.  

 CHC’s scores for the Enhanced Care HIS measures for this time period were above the 
national average. Visits from an RN, physician, nurse practitioner, or physician 
assistant in the last three days of life CHC score was 88% and national 82.3%. An 
assessment of all seven HIS quality measures at the beginning of hospice care CHC 
score was 94.1% and national 86.4%. This measure will no longer be recorded on the 
Hospice Compare website, but we will continue to monitor it. CMS is having trouble 
measuring this off of the HIS reports. It is staying, but for a while they will not report 
on it. We found some discrepancies in our own data, so we will continue to measure it.   

 

4. Hospice QAPI 
Programs 

 CHC’s specialty programs are HeartWize, BreatheEazy, and Dementia Care. We 
discontinued the specialty programs committee and will now report on these programs 

 

PAGE - 58



QI Committee Meeting – 09/17/19, page 2 
 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
to the QI Committee. In order to find a way to measure the success of the dementia 
care program, we are creating a QAPI with a goal to provide patients and families with 
excellent end of life experiences for dementia patients and related cognitive 
impairment diagnosis by providing specialized interdisciplinary presence and 
interventions. We are also working with Patti Piechocki from the Alzheimer’s & 
Dementia Services of Northern Indiana to develop a certification program for our 
nurses and aides on dementia care. Kathy Kloss will chair that program.  

 In the second quarter of 2019, HeartWize averaged 116 patients a month in the 
program. Three patients sought treatment at a hospital and two for symptom 
management. In April 1.8% were hospitalized related to cardiac symptoms, 1.7% in 
May, and 0.8% in June.  

 BreatheEazy averaged 80 patients in the second quarter in the program. Eight sought 
treatment,  five for symptom management. In April, 6.4% were hospitalized related to 
pulmonary symptoms, 6.1% in May and 3.8% in June. We are looking at the process 
from admission to make sure we are doing education and include triage in that to make 
sure we are responding to calls appropriately.  

5. Hospice 
Quality 
Indicators 

 Live Discharges – Patients initiate "revocations" and "transfers" live discharges,  and 
agencies initiate "no longer terminally ill", "for cause", and "left service area" live 
dicharges. Comparing NHPCO 2017 data to CHC to the first half of 2019, CHC total 
deaths 88.6%, nationally 82.9%. Our percentage is above the national average, which 
indicates we are meeting the guidelines for eligibility for hospice services. Live 
discharges CHC 11.4%, nationally 17.1%. Revocations CHC 7.1%, nationally 6.5%. 
Transfers CHC 0.8%, nationally 2.1%. Moved out of service area CHC 1.9%, 
nationally 1.4%. No longer terminally ill CHC 1.2%, nationally 6.7%. Discharged for 
cause CHC 0.4%, nationally 0.3%.  

 The Live Discharges QAPI is looking closely at revocations. 58% of patients that 
revoke do so within the first 25 days of being on service. Approximately 50% of those 
who revoke return within days. Our HeartWize and BreatheEazy patients are 
frequently the ones who seek to revoke services. Six revocations were for drain 
placements. On 08/01 we started using a revocation cue card to guide nurses in 
documenting of live discharges.  

 We did education to social work, chaplains, bereavement, and admissions on 
documentation standards. We had 98% compliance.  

 

PAGE - 59



QI Committee Meeting – 09/17/19, page 3 
 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
 Chaplains – Care plans and summary note standards were updated and we continue to 

monitor for compliance. 100% of all new admissions are being monitored for initial 
assessment compliance. We had 223 new admissions from 07/24 – 09/11 and only one 
fell outside the five day assessment compliance. We also started peer reviews of charts 
to verify the information is accurate. We are also reviewing the chaplain policies to 
make sure they are accurate and in line with the CoPs.  

 Social Work – We created a new documentation profile and updated documentation 
standards. In February we started new visit/contact standards. We are monitoring the 
initial social work assessments and Respite stays to make sure the documentation is 
accurate. We also reviewed the social work policies.  

 Bereavement – We are reviewing all of the bereavement policies. We are creating a 
monitoring tool to make sure we are compliant. Counselors attended Tier One and Tier 
Two Star Behavioral Health Providers (SBHP) Veterans training. Some have also 
attended Tier Three trainings, and those that have not, will attend as able given the 
training schedules and locations. We are working on consistency in documentation of 
individual and family counseling sessions.  

 Education Topics – Sue M. did education for all disciplines at each office in June and 
July on documentation do’s and don’ts, cutting and pasting, certification criteria, 
NHPCO standards, HIPAA, legal considerations, consumer concerns, and incident 
reporting. 98% of staff participated. We did education in April was onboarding training 
and CHPN study groups. In May we did Hospice 101 to the Mishawaka EMS. In June 
we did active shooter training at EGH, level three volunteer skills validation, and 
onboarding training.  

 Patient Safety – YTD we had 107 adverse events outside of falls. There were 6 
medication delivery events, 7 drug diversion events, 8 medication errors, 12 wounds, 
and 17 general medication events. When a patient is admitted to the IPU from a 
hospital, we are recording if the patient comes to us with a pressure ulcer or other 
adverse event. Falls – We always see an increase in falls in the summer, because 
patients are going outside. The top reasons for falls are: #1 weakness, #2 cognition, #3 
dementia.  

6. Home Health 
QAPI 
Programs 

 The new Home Health CoPs went into effect 01/01/2018. QAPI activities for 2019 
included OASIS and Home Health CoPs training for QA staff, nurses, admissions, and 
Billing. We reviewed and updated home health policies. As a result of the home health 

 

PAGE - 60



QI Committee Meeting – 09/17/19, page 4 
 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
survey, we reviewed our policy when a patient is admitted to the hospital. Nurses were 
educated on our home health program. We increased monitoring for Medicare 
replacement insurance companies by QA and Billing. We are monitoring therapy visits 
to make sure we have their documentation, OASIS, and adverse events.   

 Home Health Compare Website – We do not need to participate because the percentage 
of home health patients we serve falls below the threshold at least through 2021. Karl 
Holderman tracks and submits these numbers annually.  

 Patient Safety – No adverse events YTD outside of falls. Census has increased in home 
health, so we’ve seen an increase in the number of falls. Hospitalizations – We are 
taking a serious look at our policies when a home health patient goes to the hospital. 
We put the patient on hold, but we have no standard how long to do that.  

7. ISDH Survey 
Follow Up 

 In May two surveyors arrived to investigate four hospice complaints. One complaint 
was related to Respite care, one to wounds, and the other two were unsubstantiated. 
We had ten days to submit a plan of correction. ISDH did not accept our first and 
second plans, but did accept the third. That occurred on Monday and then the surveyor 
returned on Friday after having told us it would be 42 days before she followed up. She 
was also investigating a new complaint. The day before the hospice surveyor returned, 
another surveyor showed up for our home health survey that was due in October 2018. 
So we had two surveys going on at the same time. Thank you to our QA Department 
and other staff that broke into teams for hospice and home health to work on the 
surveys. 

 We continue to monitor the areas of concern identified in the survey. Social work and 
chaplain initial assessments within five days of admission – 100% compliance in July. 
Separate hospice and home health IDTs – 100% compliance in July and August. 14 
day reviews are not required for home health, but we have decided we will do them 
because the majority of those patients are palliative care and will eventually move to 
hospice.  

 Medications in the IPU – 100% compliance for August through 09/10/19 for nine 
Respite patients.  

 Respite – We continue to monitor that we are offering patients and families additional 
locations if both IPUs are full. 100% compliance.  

 Wounds – Compliance in May was 68%, June 69%, July 74%. We are monitoring care 

  

PAGE - 61



QI Committee Meeting – 09/17/19, page 5 
 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
plans for skin and wound care and doing peer reviews. The PCCs are responsible to 
review the wound care plans, potential or actual wounds, interventions, and that 
wounds are measured at least every seven days. Wounds are reviewed at every IDT 
and care plans updated concurrently. We are also monitoring which nurses are in 
compliance and which are not and talking to them one on one if they need further 
education. Performance improvement plans will be done for staff that is not in 
compliance. May had 184 patients with actual/potential wounds, June 324, and July 
323. Some PCCs are having their nurses review their own charts and correct them, 
which has been a great learning experience for them. We have created tools to monitor 
compliance. We are looking at adding a certified wound care nurse and are working on 
a job description.  

 We have created a tracking method for identified survey tags that includes our plan, 
what we are monitoring, and our actions to be in compliance.  Social work and 
chaplains assessment occurring within five days of admission – 99% compliance in 
July and as of last week 100% compliance. Separating Hospice and Home Health IDTs 
– 100% compliance. Respite patients in the IPU medication reconciliation – 100% 
compliance for nine Respite patients.  

 We are also tracking other areas we identified during the hospice survey process that 
we need to improve upon. One is the MobileCare device the aides use for 
documentation. When they have connection issues, they use paper flow sheets. We 
realized the form in Cerner doesn’t match the paper form, so we are working on that. 
We are monitoring Home Health OASIS. The surveyor insisted we need to do an 
OASIS for patients with commercial insurance, but we showed her the CoPs that said it 
was not required. We are also looking at PRN orders, because there must be a specific 
reason for it.   

 Home Health survey – The only thing we were cited for was not having a copy of the 
urine drug screening in all employee files. We offered to print copies while the 
surveyor was here, but she didn’t want to wait. We received the survey letter on 09/12 
and have 30 days to submit our plan of correction.  

8. Other Business  Jennifer E. commended staff for doing a great job correcting identified problems 
quickly.   

 QI Committee evaluation – Annually we need to evaluate this committee. We could do 
it via a written survey. The membership of the committee has changed. Kim G. is 

 

PAGE - 62



QI Committee Meeting – 09/17/19, page 6 
 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
representing nursing, Tammy H. the IPUs, and Deb D. admissions. If you want the 
handouts ahead of time, we can make those available to you. The only thing not on the 
report is volunteer services and medical staff. We will start reporting on volunteer 
hours in the future.  

Adjournment  The meeting adjourned at 8:45 a.m. Next meeting 11/19 
 
 

PAGE - 63



 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 
THREE 

 
PRESIDENT’S 

REPORT 

PAGE - 64



 
 

Center for Hospice Care 
President / CEO Report 

November 20, 2019 
(Report posted to Secure Board Website on November 14, 2019) 

 
This meeting takes place in Conference Room A at the Mishawaka Campus at 7:15 AM.  This 
report includes event information from August 22 – November 20, 2019.  The Hospice Foundation 
and GPIC Board meetings follow immediately in Conference Room C. 
 
 
CENSUS 
 
Census has continued to be at all time record levels.  At the end of October we were at a 419 
average daily census for the year, the highest in our history.  October alone was at 428.  Our federal 
fiscal year rates for 2020 went into effect on October 1 which should be positive for our financials 
with our significant increases in our daily reimbursement for general inpatient (GIP) and respite 
levels of care.  Rates in South Bend increased 35% for GIP, 157% for respite and in Elkhart rates 
increased 43% and 160% respectively.  Overall referrals to CHC year to date are up slightly a 
0.022%.  The percentage of patients dying before admission is up slightly from same time last year 
at 7.42% compared to 7.22% last year.  47% of all patients this year have been admitted the same 
day the referral was received or the next day.  Inpatient units census has been very choppy with 
some very short lengths of stay and numerous patients not surviving 24 hours.  We can be nearly 
full one day and have one or no patients the next day. 
 

October 2019 
 

Current 
Month 

Year to Date Prior 
Year to Date 

Percent 
Change 

     
Patients Served 523 1,785 1,761 1.36% 
Original Admissions 144 1,418 1,393 1.79% 
ADC Hospice 400.29 389.07 377.83 2.97% 
ADC Home Health 27.90 29.76 11.28 72.22% 
ADC CHC Total 428.19 418.83 395.11 6.00% 

 
CHC HOSPICE INPATIENT UNITS 
 

October 2019 Current 
Month 

Year to Date Prior 
Year to Date 

Percent 
Change 

SB House Pts Served 31 300 298 0.67% 
SB House ALOS 3.81 5.10 5.28 -3.41% 
SB House Occupancy 54.38% 71.90% 73.87% -2.67% 
     
Elk House Pts Served 23 236 228 3.51% 
Elk House ALOS 3.96 5.24 4.49 16.70% 
Elk House Occupancy 41.94% 58.08% 48.12% 20.70% 

 

PAGE - 65



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 2 

 

MONTHLY AVERAGE DAILY CENSUS BY OFFICE AND INPATIENT UNITS 
 
 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 
 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec  
 
S.B.: 190 197 204 217 221 228 234 231 224 230  198 
 
Ply: 74 77 79 77 74 76 67 66 69 68  75 
 
Elk: 92 94 94 96 101 105 105 107 111 111  96 
 
Lap: 14 18 18 20 24 23 21 15 13 12  14 
 
SBH: 5 5 5 5 4 5 6 6 5 4  4 
 
EKH: 3 4 5 5 4 4 6 4 3 3  3 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Total: 378 394 405 420 428 441 439 429 425 428  390 
 
 
PATIENTS IN FACILITIES 
 

Of the 523 patients served in October 2019, 185 resided in facilities.  The average daily census of 
patients served in nursing homes, assisted living facilities and group homes in October 2019 was 
156 and year to date it was 141. 
 
 
FINANCES 
 
Karl Holderman, CFO, reports the year-to-date October 2019 Financials will be posted to the Board 
website on Friday morning, November 15th following Finance Committee approval.  For 
informational purposes, we are pleased to present the unapproved September 2019 year-end 
financials on the next page. 
 
On 9/30/19, at the HF, intermediate investments totaled $4,773,919.  Long term investments totaled 
$21,026,957.  The combined total assets of all organizations, including GPIC, on September 30, 
2019 totaled $64,246,186, an increase of $10,158,271, or almost 19%, from September 2018. 
 
Year-to-date investments as of 9/30/19 showed a gain of $2,766,446.  From a year-to-date budget 
standpoint at 9/30/19, CHC alone was over budget on operating revenue by $463,681, over budget 
on total revenue by $2,002,144, and under budget on operating expenses by $1,248,907. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAGE - 66



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 3 

 

Year to Date September 2019 Financials 
 

September 2019 
Year to Date Summary 

Center for 
Hospice Care 

Hospice 
Foundation GPIC Combined 

CHC Operating Income 17,177,661  
  

17,177,661  

MADS Revenue 271,907  
  

271,907  

Development Income 
 

1,512,513  
 

1,512,513  

Partnership Grants 
  

391,223  391,223  

Investment Income (Net) 
 

2,765,446  
 

2,765,446  

Interest & Other 25,138  49,654  23,854  98,646  

Beneficial Interest in Affiliate 2,062,089  (11,291) 
 

  

  
   

  

Total Revenue 19,536,795  4,316,322  415,077  22,217,396  

  
   

  

Total Expenses 15,245,747  2,254,233  426,368  17,926,348  

  
   

  

Net Gain 4,291,048  2,062,089  (11,291) 4,291,048  

  
   

  

Net w/o Beneficial Interest 2,228,959  2,073,380  
 

  

  
   

  

Net w/o Investments       1,525,602  

      
2020 CHC BUDGET ON THE AGENDA FOR NOVEMBER MEETING 
 
The Finance Committee also reviewed and is expected to approve the 2020 CHC Budget at their 
meeting on November 15th.  CHC’s budget alone is over $26 million dollars for next year.  To 
continue business into the new year, it is very important that we have a quorum at our next board 
meeting.  Please plan to attend the board meeting on Wednesday, November 20. 
 
CHC VP/COO UPDATE 
 
Dave Haley, CHC VP/COO, reports… 
 
Karissa Misner, D.O., M.P.T., joined our medical staff on August 19.  She finished her Fellowship 
training in Hospice and Palliative Medicine at a program in Macon, Georgia this summer.  
Additionally, she is Board Certified in Rehabilitative Medicine.  Nicole Shirilla, MD, who is Board 
Certified in both Family Medicine and in Hospice and Palliative Medicine, and currently a Clinical 
Assistant Professor at the Ohio State University College of Medicine in Columbus, Ohio, 
interviewed for a vacancy we have on our medical staff.  A job offer was extended to her and we are 
awaiting her response.  Her availability is in approximately six months.  

PAGE - 67



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 4 

 

We currently have an opening for another physician to assist with the growth in the level of patients 
we have been experiencing.  We have started employing internet geofencing in our physician 
recruitment activities.  Geofencing is social media targeting of prospective physicians in certain 
geographic areas with ads notifying them of physician opportunities with CHC.  The ads allow 
physicians to click to our web site and message us indicating their interest and to provide us with 
their contact information. 
 
We have had several physician Fellows and medical students rotate through our agency for training 
in the last several months.  Collin Bowman, MD, will rotate through from November 17 to 
November 27.  He will be the Vera Z. Dwyer Fellow in Hospice and Palliative Medicine and will be 
so recognized at a reception at the IU School of Medicine on November 21. 
 
Dave Haley recently negotiated a five-year contract extension with our drug vendor, Optum, 
involving no increase in Optum charges during that time period.  We continue to be one of the top 
performers in the Optum national book of business. 
 
Our new LaPorte branch office building construction is complete and fully functional.  Staff have 
moved and we are up and running. 
 
The clinical offices located at Roseland have relocated to the Mishawaka campus and are now 
operating out of this campus.  The South Bend inpatient unit remains there and will move upon 
completion of the Ernestine M. Raclin House. 
 
Our annual Bereavement Memorial Services are scheduled for November 24.  They will be held at 
the Kroc Center in South Bend at 2 pm, Trinity Church on Jackson in Elkhart at 2 pm, and at 
Christos in Plymouth at 4 pm.  Board members are welcome to attend any of these services. 
 
 
DIRECTOR OF NURSING UPDATE 
 
Sue Morgan, DON, reports… 
 
Sue Morgan RN Director of Nursing and Kathy Kloss RN Clinical Educator presented at the 
NHPCO Clinical Conference on November 5 and 6, 2019.  Two concurrent presentations have been 
accepted, “How to Develop an ELNEC (End of Life Nursing Consortium) Program for your 
Clinical Staff” and “QAPI Success—End Stage Cardio Pulmonary Program.” 
 
The following Education Programs were held internally since the last board meeting: 
• The “Do’s and Don’ts of Documentation” was presented in August for all nurses, social 

workers, chaplains, bereavement and admissions representatives. The program included a 
competency on documentation in which 122 employees attended. 

• Wound Care Self Learning Packets  
• Cardiac Pulmonary Boot Camp 
• Preceptor Class 
• Trunk and Treat fair, all nurses traded out supplies in their automobiles 
• Infection Control and Bag Technique Self Learning Packet 
  

PAGE - 68



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 5 

 

The Nursing department and Volunteer Department are working collaboratively to develop an 
improved Volunteer Training Program. 
 
On October 22, 2019 the Office of the Attorney General conducted an investigation based on the 
previous issues identified from the State Hospice Survey related to Medication Management.  The 
inspector reviewed record documentation and interviewed the Director of Nursing and Assistant 
Director of Nursing in the care of the patient and medication management.  We have not received 
any official notification from the outcome of the investigation.  
 
The Indiana State Department of Health conducted a Home Health Survey August 20, 21, 24 and 
25.  There was one area of non-compliance identified related to drug screening results available in 
employee human resource records.  This was immediately corrected.  The plan of correction was 
submitted on September 1, 2019 and final letter of compliance was received on September 12, 
2019. 
 
In the area of Quality Improvement, the HIS (Hospice Item Set) required submission to CMS we 
exceeded all the national standards. 
 
 
HOSPICE FOUNDATION VP / COO UPDATE 
 
Mike Wargo, VP/COO, for our two separates 501(c)3 organization, Hospice Foundation (HF), and 
Global Partners in Care (GPIC) presents this update for informational purposes to the CHC Board… 
 

Fund Raising Comparative Summary 
 
Through October 2019, the Development Department recorded the following calendar year cash 
gifts as compared with the same period during the previous four years:   

   

 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

January 82,400.05 65,460.71 46,552.99 37,015.96 62,707.48 

February 150,006.82 101,643.17 199,939.17 93,912.90 113,771.80 

March 257,463.89 178,212.01 282,326.61 220,485.17 369,862.26 

April 419,610.76 341,637.10 431,871.55 310,093.61 565,568.94 

May 635,004.26 579,888.08 574,854.27 505,075.65 663,483.70 

June 794,780.62 710,175.32 1,066,118.11 633,102.69 850,496.19  

July 956,351.88 1,072,579.84 1,277,609.56 767,397.15 918,451.53 

August 1,042,958.42 1,205,050.76 1,346,219.26 868,232.25 1,018,532.22 

September 1,267,659.12 1,297.009.78 1,466,460.27 994,301.35 1,122,498.94 

October 1,321,352.39 1,421,110.26 1,593,668.39 1,074,820.86 1,778,379.29 

Nov 1,469,386.01 1,494,702.09 2,443,869.12 1,173,928.93  

December 1,757,042.51 2,018,630.54 2,730,551.86 $1,635,368.33  

 
 
 
 
 

PAGE - 69



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 6 

 

Year-to-Date Monthly Revenue 
(less major campaigns, bequests and significant one-time major gifts) 

 
 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

January 57,971.60 52,156.98 31,552.99 37,015.96 51,082.36 

February 67,572.77 36,182.46 35,125.58 56,896.94 45,621.02 

March 107,457.07 73,667.84 79,387.44 113,969.42 254,547.16 

April 162,146.87 163,425.09 149,569.94 87,978.18 194,857.93 

May 160,178.34 93,318.98 142,982.72 182,601.92 97,864.76 

June 159,776.36 127,315.24 146,200.17 46,947.92 69,026.39 

July 93,586.27 52,394.52 61,505.45 64,243.53 67,591.20 

August 86,606.54 97,470.92 63,593.03 61,803.98 54,739.37 

September 99,931.45 92,459.02 120,261.01 117,984.73 68,812.68 

October 53,693.27 71,323.54 127,208.12 79,852.69 50,019.27 

November 46,870.62 66,490.16 75,809.56 94,053.07  

December 161,519.80 138,328.11 286,687.74 191,211.72  

Total 1,257,310.96 1,064,532.86 1,319,883.75 1,134,560.06 954,162.14 

 
Cornerstones for Living: The Crossroads Campaign 
 
The Crossroads Campaign ended chronologically on June 30, 2019.  We continue to work on 
closing large gifts from a few select donors, who have indicated that they intend to participate.  Our 
6/30/19 campaign total is $12,835,737, surpassing our total 5-year campaign goal of $10 million by 
28%.  Since our last report, the addition of campaign gifts solicited prior to 6/30/19 and received 
since that date resulted in a revised campaign total of $13,494,090. 
 
Planned Giving 
 
Estate gifts since the last report totaled $562,860.  We continue to field requests from financial 
advisors and attorneys about planned giving options and bequests from their clients.  One large 
significant bequest that’s been in the works since March 2019 is from the estate of Raymond A. 
Wiley totaling $449,414.  Center for Hospice Care provided care to members of Raymond Wiley’s 
family.  
 
Annual Giving 
 
Our 2019 annual appeal mailing is being developed and will be sent out by the end of November.  
 
Special Events & Projects 
 
Events in August, September and October are summarized in the following:  Members of the St. Joe 
Valley Street Rods visited CHC’s Campus on August 23rd and presented us with a donation of 
$11,500 to increase this group’s total giving to $125,450.  The 11th Bike Michiana for Hospice and 
34th Walk for Hospice took place on September 8th.  As we’ve experienced with the Walk over the 
years, we are now seeing a similar decline in participation among cyclists.  Participation figures 
over the past four years are as follows: 2016:1,015, 2017:875, 2018:400, 2019:253.  This 
information leads us to the conclusion that these events have likely run their course.  The amount of 

PAGE - 70



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 7 

 

work and effort expended by both staff and volunteers to produce these events far outweighs the 
return on investment.  HF staff is working with the volunteer leaders of both events to evaluate 
future revenue potential and sustainability as 3rd Party events in which HF staff would have a very 
limited role beyond participation on the day of the event.  Hospice Foundation’s annual Veterans 
Tribute Ceremony took place at the Captain Robert J. Hiler Jr. Veterans Memorial on October 15. 
We hosted more than 100 veterans and guests.  Our featured speaker was retired USAF Chief 
Master Sergeant Scott Brewer.  He is currently Senior Vice President of Government Affairs and 
Community Relations and Security with the Pokagon Band and Four Winds Casinos. 
 
Palliative Care Association of Uganda (PCAU) 
 
Staff from Center for Hospice Care (CHC) and the Hospice Foundation (HF) were part of the 
International Conference on Cancer and Palliative Care in Kampala, Uganda  September 5 and 6.  
More than 300 attendees from 13 countries shared innovative, evidence-based research and projects 
as well as best practices to improve cancer and palliative care throughout the region.  This is the 
second time the conference has been held jointly by the Palliative Care Association of Uganda 
(PCAU) and the Uganda Cancer Institute.  During the conference, CHC was recognized as a key 
partner in the development of palliative care in Uganda over the past ten years.  Mike Wargo 
accepted the award for “outstanding contributions through funding PCAU to extend palliative care 
services throughout Uganda” from Uganda’s Minister of Health, The Honorable Dr. Jane Ruth 
Aceng.  Other CHC and HF staff participated in the conference. Kristiana Donahue, CHC volunteer 
recruitment coordinator, presented a session on “Volunteer Program Essentials.” Annette Deguch, 
CHC bereavement counselor, gave an interactive session on “Yoga and Mindfulness: A more 
holistic palliative care approach.” Both were well received.  Lacey Ahern, HF international program 
manager, moderated a workshop on digital health and palliative care with an official from the 
Uganda Ministry of Health.  HF has been working with PCAU on a digital health/mHealth 
palliative care surveillance project to improve the evidence base for palliative care programming 
and policy.  Denis Kidde, HF international program coordinator, co-chaired a breakout session on 
service delivery and was part of the overall conference organizing committee.  The conference was 
part of an exchange visit for CHC and HF staff to Uganda.  While in Uganda, CHC and HF 
personnel also spent time with PCAU staff on several of the joint projects the partnership supports. 
The team participated in high level meetings with Uganda government officials at Ministry of 
Health, Ministry of Education and Sports, and Uganda Police.  These meetings gave the team an 
opportunity to interface with government officials and better understand the dynamics that exist at 
the national level as PCAU champions its vision and mission.  They visited children on the Road to 
Hope program.  Staff was able to visit some children at home and meet their guardians.  The staff 
also visited a couple of the schools our children attend.  Staff visited PCAU member organizations. 
This offered an opportunity for our staff to meet palliative care patients and experience service 
delivery. These visits helped our staff understand the challenges health care workers face in the 
office and on home visits.  We visited Mulago School of Nursing and Midwifery where a new 
palliative care training program for nurses was launched by PCAU (with support from HF/CHC) 
earlier this year.  These visits are very important learning and sharing opportunities and really help 
deepen the partnership. Connecting in person is vital to building strong relationships, and they offer 
CHC staff a way to be more directly involved in the partnership. 
 
 
 
 

PAGE - 71



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 8 

 

Road to Hope (RTH) 
 
We recently completed a careful evaluation of RTH program costs and programming with the goal 
of developing a financial sustainability plan for the program. After assessing actual costs for 
supporting the children, we have concluded that overall sponsorship costs are higher than 
established previously. This has occurred for a variety of reasons.  These include the fact that some 
costs have increased because PCAU is enrolling children in schools better equipped to handle the 
social/emotional needs of these extremely vulnerable children.  We are communicating this change 
with sponsors individually and welcome them to continue giving at current levels if they cannot 
increase their sponsorship amount.  We are also working on an overall fundraising strategy to 
identify other sources of funding to support the children and the program. 
 
PCAU Intern 
 
Kat Kostolansky, a junior at the University of Notre Dame, completed a very successful internship 
with PCAU supporting the Road to Hope program.  Given the significant growth in the program 
since it started seven years ago, Kat worked closely with the PCAU team to develop frameworks, 
documentation and tracking of the children in the program.  This organization and structure will 
help us advance the program.    
 
Advanced Diploma in Palliative Care Nursing (ADCPCN) 
 
The second intake of July 2019 saw 12 students admitted for this course at Mulago School of 
Nursing and Midwifery.  In the inaugural year of the program, a total of 27 students are being 
sponsored.  While the financial investment has remained relatively constant over the years, the 
number of supported nurses has quadrupled over that which we experienced when all the training 
was done at the Institute of Hospice and Palliative Care in Africa from 2010 – 2018. 
 
mHealth Project 
 
As noted above, the project hosted a digital health workshop at the PCAU conference.  The 
objective was to bring together key stakeholders in the full scale up of the mHealth palliative care 
surveillance project.  Participants discussed successes and challenges as well as the best way to 
move forward integrating the project into the Ministry of Health informatics.  The Head of the 
Division of Health Information-Ministry of Health (MOH) was a guest speaker and discussed 
possible integration of the mHealth surveillance system with government data systems. PCAU is 
actively working on this integration with the MOH.  
 
Partnership Report 
 
The CHC/PCAU 10th anniversary partnership report has been published.  This document reflects 
on the successes of this partnership from 2008 – 2018.  Copies were taken to Uganda for the 
conference to be shared with stakeholders; PCAU also has additional copies to share as they deem 
appropriate.  Their input was invaluable in preparing the report. 
  
 
 
 

PAGE - 72



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 9 

 

Education and Collaborative Partnerships 
 
On World Hospice and Palliative Care Day, October 13th, the Center for Education & Advance 
Care Planning, along with Harper Cancer Research Center, Global Partners in Care and the Eck 
Institute for Global Health worked with DeBartolo Performing Arts Center to screen “The 
Farewell.”  This highly rated comedy-drama focuses on cultural dialogues and traditions 
surrounding end-of-life conversations.  Following the film Mike Wargo, Cyndy Searfoss, Lacey 
Ahern and Yutong Liu (an ND graduate who was also a PCAU intern) participated in a panel 
discussion and fielded questions from audience members.  The film was sold out and approximately 
40 people stayed for the panel discussion.  Collaborative initiatives like this allow our community 
to learn about topics like end-of-life conversations to a world view on palliative care. 
 
Health System Collaborations 
 
As part of our professional education mission we continue to offer webinars to area health systems.  
The Center for Education & Advance Care Planning hosted a series of webinars at St. Joseph 
Health System Mishawaka Medical Center.  These webinars offer CE credits through the Hospice 
Foundation of America and have been made available to CHC staff as well as other community 
professionals.  This year we offered these webinars three times a month at our Mishawaka and 
Elkhart Campuses to ensure that the vast majority of employees had the opportunity to attend.  
 
Education 
 
In what has become an annual event, the Center for Education & Advance Care Planning also 
hosted the National Alliance for Grieving Children’s (NAGC) webinar on campus on November 
8th. This event was made available to the general public and offered CE credits through NAGC.  
The clinician education workshop, IU Talk, was held on October 11th in collaboration with the IU 
School of Medicine. Faculty for the workshop were Dr. Lyle Fettig and Dr. Rafael Rosario.  
Attendees were led through simulated conversations about end-of-life care and were exposed to 
new skills through those mock-conversations.  This program was offered with CME credits for the 
first time as well.  We continue to be involved in NHPCO’s grassroots campaign, MyHospice.  We 
anticipate that we will host Indiana legislators from our service area on campus next year.  Our 
ambassador, Elleah Tooker, flew to Washington, DC on September 16-18th to meet with Indiana 
legislators and discuss NHPCO priorities.  The trip was all expense paid by a national underwriter 
who happens to be our former pharmacy vendor.  Part of our development of these relationships 
also gives us an opportunity to highlight our own programs and campus development.  In addition, 
Elleah used our collaboration with the IU School of Medicine on the Hospice and Palliative 
Medicine Fellowship/IU Talk (funded by the Vera Z. Dwyer Trust) to highlight how donors, 
hospice organizations and universities can work together on palliative care education and provision.  
In addition, we are working with NHPCO and the MyHospice program to create content for World 
Hospice and Palliative Care Month (November).  This includes highlighting the Ernestine M. 
Raclin House as well as thanking legislators for helping to pass PCHETA in the House, one of 
NHPCO’s high priority bills.  As part of our community end-of-life education initiatives we 
continue to offer a variety of programs to community organizations.  Since August, we have hosted 
four events off campus.  Atria Eastlake Terrace scheduled a customized “Cupcakes to Die for” on 
August 22nd at their facility for residents and guests.  Elkhart Meadows hosted an advance care 
directives conversation on September 25th. On October 2nd we held a “Death by Chocolate” at 
Golden Living; on October 9th, Grand Emerald hosted a DBC as well.  The goal of these events is 

PAGE - 73



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 10 

 

to normalize the conversation about end-of-life and to talk to community members about advance 
care directives.  Part of our work with Honoring Choices Indiana – North Central (HCIN-NC) is 
helping facilitate the completion of advance care directives.  Elleah, who completed Respecting 
Choices® First Steps facilitation certification, worked with Sr. Eileen Wrobleski to assist residents 
at Oakhaven in Bremen. In addition, one of our HCIN-NC volunteers, retired palliative care nurse 
Michael White, was recently certified as an Honoring Choices instructor.  This now offers us the 
opportunity to conduct facilitator training without the need to bring in an instructor from outside the 
area. 
 
Facilities 
 
Construction is complete on the Clinical Staff Building with a few open punch list items yet to be 
addressed by DJ Construction and various subcontractors.  Roseland staff was oriented and moved 
into the new building during the week of September 30th.  Construction is very nearly complete at 
our new 12-bed inpatient facility, the Ernestine M. Raclin House.  We anticipate the building being 
turned over to us by DJ Construction on November 13th.  Furniture is scheduled for installation on 
November 14th and 15th with a ribbon-cutting/dedication event to take place on November 19th.  
Following that event, work will begin on completing punch list items and installation will begin on 
the data, AV and telephone systems. Finishing touches should be complete by year-end with full 
occupancy soon thereafter.  The Cedar Street residential home is under contract at a purchase price 
of $384,900. The Buyers need to sell their home in Virginia before setting a closing date.  In 
addition to the Mishawaka Campus, the Hospice Foundation has assumed responsibility for 
maintenance of all HF-owned facilities (Elkhart and Roseland) as well as those leased by CHC 
(Plymouth and La Porte).  We’re currently working with Jeff Helman and Brad Sechrist on plans to 
remodel and transform the Roseland facility into the new home for Milton Adult Day Services. 
 
 
GLOBAL PARTNERS IN CARE 
 
We have begun our end-of-year assessment which we will share in January.  In the meantime, 
below are on the key areas identified during our mid-year review: 
 
• Fundraising: We are making progress in this area. We recently received a $10,000 grant 

from the Ronald W. Naito MD Foundation to support our Partnership Program.  We 
continue to work closely with Chris Taelman to advance this area. In addition, GPIC is now 
included as an area of focus for the larger HF fundraising strategy, which is being guided by 
Dan Reagan, who was our consultant for the Crossroads Campaign.  

 
• Recruiting US partners: This was a focus of the grant (above) and will be a high priority 

activity for 2020. To date in 2019 we have established one new partnership (Delaware 
Hospice and NAPCare) and there are three more potential partnerships we are hopeful will 
launch in the next several months. 

 
• Nepal: Further developing our engagement in Nepal and the region will be a focal area in 

2020. 
 
 
 

PAGE - 74



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 11 

 

Partnerships 
 
We currently have 40 partnerships.  Caris Healthcare recently ended their 12-year partnership with 
Hospice Ethiopia (who is already re-partnered with Snowline Hospice and that is going very well). 
Dekalb Hospice / Northwestern Medicine ended their partnership with Knysna Sedgefield Hospice 
in South Africa.  This was a well-established partnership, but the US partner was bought by 
JourneyCare, a large hospice / palliative care organization that was not interested in continuing the 
partnership.  Many of our partners have been engaging more with us – reaffirming the value that 
GPIC offers partnerships. Several have increased their financial commitments to their international 
partners as well. Our Advisory Council has played a big role in growing several of these 
partnerships.  We are in conversation with a few potential new US partners.  We hope to launch a 
partnership between the Missouri Hospice and Palliative Care Association (MHPCA) and Kenya 
Hospices and Palliative Care Association (KEHPCA) very soon.  Amedysis is interested in 
partnering and we are working with GPIC Advisory Council member, Lori Williams, on 
establishing this partnership.  Her leadership team is supportive, and we have identified a hospice in 
Kenya to partner them with.  We are waiting on the green light from Lori to get this one set.  
Hospice of Acadiana reached out to us with interest in establishing a partnership.  They are the 
largest not-for-profit hospice in Louisiana.  We have had a few follow up conversations and are 
hopeful we can establish a partnership in the next few months.  We are setting up a conversation 
with World Hospice and Palliative Care Association to discuss how we might expand our 
partnership model in the UK.  
 
Research and Education 
 
We continue to stay engaged in the following research collaborations. The university and 
organizational partners are very supportive of our role as a collaborator on these projects.  One 
project is Understanding the Challenges of the Aging Population in Ghana.  GPIC remains in 
partnership with the University of Alberta and APCA on this project.  We are currently writing 
another grant application to the Social Sciences Research Council of Canada to advance the project.  
This is for a large Partnership Development Grant. APCA will play a key role in this grant.  We 
have continued to advance planning for a pilot project with University of Kansas Medical Center 
(KUMC) and ELCT and have also brought University of Notre Dame (UND) into the project.  We 
will have a master’s student from UND who will work closely with KUMC and ELCT to help pilot 
the project in 2020. 
 
Palliative Care Leadership Center Project 
 
Anne Monroe, a representative from Bluegrass Care Navigators, attended the APCA conference 
with us in September.  This was a great opportunity for her to learn more about palliative care in the 
African context to help us advance the project.  We were able to have a meeting with a majority of 
APCA staff to brainstorm with Anne which led to three possible areas of focus for launching the 
project with APCA:  
• Streamlining strategic planning / organizational support resources for national associations (and 

other members); 
• Palliative Care Standards / Guidelines revision for African context; 
• Study on costing of palliative care – needed for policy development. 
 
 

PAGE - 75



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 12 

 

University Collaborations 
 
The Palliative Care working group of the Consortium of Universities for Global Health (CUGH) 
submitted a proposal for a panel discussion at the CUGH 2020 conference. APCA and WHPCA 
were invited as part of the panel.  It was, however, not accepted and the working group is 
discussing the best way to move forward with continuing the discussion at the conference. Lacey, in 
her role as an adjunct faculty member at Notre Dame, was awarded a small partnership 
development grant along with Uganda Martyrs University from CUGH.  This builds on existing 
work between UND, PCAU and the Center for Hospice Care / Hospice Foundation on collecting 
palliative care data in Uganda.  While not directly a GPIC project, this may give us more 
opportunity to raise our profile and possibly open doors for additional funding. 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS, MARKETING, AND ACCESS 
 
Craig Harrell, Director of Marketing and Access, reports on marketing and access activities for 
August through October. 
 
Referral, Professional, & Community Outreach 
 
Our Professional Community Liaisons continue to contact doctor’s offices, clinics, hospitals, group 
homes and extended care facilities in an effort to build relationships and generate referrals.  During 
August through October our four Professional Relations Liaisons completed 1,486 visits to current 
and potential referral sources within our service area.  They accomplished 529, 455, and 502 visits 
in August thru October respectively.  
 
Peter Ashley, who joined us in May from the Hospice Foundation as the newly created Community 
Relations and Engagement Liaison has accepted a position with Hanover College as their Vice 
President of Communications & Marketing.  His focus since May has been two-fold; to lead CHC 
in attaining We Honor Veterans Level 5 before the end of the year and to update our website to 
reflect the sites overseen by the Foundation, which Peter spearheaded.  Our Professional and 
Community Liaisons have hosted 30 Vet-to-Vet Cafes in both institutional and public settings.  
These cafes are designed to offer veterans an opportunity to interact with other vets and allows 
CHC to thank and honor them for their service.  We will be searching for a replacement for Peter 
that will oversee non-medical referral sources such as veteran groups, community organizations, 
faith communities and chambers of commerce. 
 
Access 
 
Due to a change in our phone system, we are temporarily unable to track the total number of 
incoming calls to our Admission Referral Specialists.  In October we surpassed the number of 
original admissions for the YTD as compared to 2018, with 1.79% increase. The average daily 
census (ADC) in hospice has increased 2.97% while home health has increased 72.22% for an 
overall increase of 6%.  We’ve also seen an increase in the number of our patients in facilities 
(Extended Care Facilities, Assisted Living Facilities and Group Homes) of over 22% compared 
with the same time last year.  The number one reason for patients not admitting continues to be 
death before admission over 70% of those referrals coming from hospitals, which is understandable 
since the patients that are at a hospital are there usually due to a crisis.  The second highest reason 

PAGE - 76



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 13 

 

for non-admits is due to the patient going with another agency, 65% of those also being from 
hospitals.  
 
Website 
 
Our new website is due to launch in the next few weeks.  In the meantime, the number of new 
overall users has increased 27.95% over the same period last year, while the new users have 
increased 30.3% for the same time. Also increasing was the number of sessions at 17.51%.  One of 
the additions to our new website will be a virtual tour of the new Ernestine M. Raclin House.  This 
virtual tour will allow patients and family members to view the different areas available to them 
should they have the need.  It also will allow the community to view it without intruding on the 
privacy of patients. If successful, we will be adding Esther’s House in the future as well. 
 
Social Media 
 
Facebook (Center4Hospice) 
Center for Hospice Care’s social media presence is increasing steadily.  We continue to use 
Facebook as a means to communicate information and events. CHC reached 107,259 people for the 
period of August-October, and had 6,574 reactions, comments and shares.  Our leading post was on 
September 16th: Overview /Center for Hospice Care.  It pointed out how scary the phone call to 
hospice can be and provided first names of our Referral Specialists. It reached nearly 4,000 people 
and generated 413 reactions, comments and shares.  The second most viewed posting was on 
August 29th and explained that CHC offers both hospice and palliative care and the difference 
between the two.  It reached 3,840 people and generated 348 reactions, comments and shares, as 
well as 92 post clicks.  We currently have over 4,200 Facebook followers. 
 
Digital Overview 
 
Digital report represents activity from August through October of 2019.  The digital campaign 
focuses on delivering our ad to the proper audience at the proper time.  For the months of August-
October it generated 159 telephone calls.  Google industry benchmarks show an average click-
through rate in the Health & Medical field of 3.79 % and we continue to be high at 8.99%. 
 
 
CLINICAL POLICIES ON THE AGENDA FOR APPROVAL 
 
There are numerous home health and hospice patient care policies on the agenda at attached to this 
board packet.  There are too many to list individually.  These policies are reviewed every three 
years and many have been updated to reflect those reviews as well as more accurately mirror 
current practices and changes in federal / state rules and regulations.  There are no new policies and 
the majority of changes are not significant.  Sue Morgan, DON, will be on hand to answer questions 
you might have. 
 
 
NATIONAL HOSPICE EXECUTIVE ROUNDTABLE MET IN OCTOBER 
 
The National Hospice Executive Roundtable met at member program The Empath Health in 
Clearwater, FL.  Topics included program updates, positioning for the potential Medicare Hospice 

PAGE - 77



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 14 

 

Managed Care carve out, software for advance directives  Additionally, we toured one of the 
Empath Health campuses and saw their HIV/AIDS programming.  The program, with eight separate 
entities and eight separate boards of directors, has an average daily census of 1,300 hospice/home 
health/palliative care patients and 325 PACE clients.  It is the largest non-profit hospice program in 
America.  It should be noted that Florida is a certificate of need state most hospice programs in the 
state have no competitors. 
 
The NHERT now is comprised of the CEOs from the following eleven programs: 
 
Care Synergy (The Denver Hospice, Halcyon Hospice, Pikes Peak Hospice and Palliative Care), 
Denver, CO. 
Empath Health (Suncoast Hospice, et. al), Clearwater, FL 
Ohio's Hospice (Hospice of Dayton, Hospice of Central Ohio, Hospice of Miami County, 
Community Mercy Hospice, Hospice of Butler and Warren Counties, Hospice of Central Ohio, 
Hospice of Fayette County, Hospice LifeCare, Hospice Loving Care, and Community Care 
Hospice), Dayton, OH. 
Bluegrass Navigators, Lexington, KY 
Hospice of Northwestern Ohio, Toledo, OH 
Arkansas Hospice, North Little Rock, AR 
The Elizabeth Hospice, San Diego, CA 
Delaware Hospice, Wilmington, DE 
Midland Care Connection, Topeka, KS 
Transitions LifeCare, Raleigh, NC 
Center for Hospice Care, South Bend, IN 
 
A twelfth participate will be joining in January.  Dian Backoff is Executive Director of Catholic 
Hospice in Miami Lakes and Fort Lauderdale, FL. 
 
 
BOARD COMMITTEE SERVICE OPPORTUNITIES 
 
Committee service by all board members is encouraged by the Executive Committee.  A listing of 
the Committees of the Board and a brief description of each is attached to this report for your 
review.  Also, please note the “Specialty Committees” section which is open to all board members.   
 
 
ELECTION OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS; RECOGNITION OF MEMBERS GOING OFF 
 
We will be electing new board members at this meeting.  There is a short bio statement on Roland 
Chamblee, Jr. and Kurt Janowsky attached to this report.  We will also be thanking Carol Walker 
and Tim Portolese for their six years of service to the CHC board. 
 
 
BOARD EDUCATION SECTION 
 
The board education section will be an update on Milton Adult Day Services, the repurposing of the 
Roseland facility for both Milton and the Caregivers Connection at Milton Village to be operated by 
Alzheimer’s and Dementia Services of Northern Indiana, the recent visit from the dementia care 

PAGE - 78



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 15 

 

experts, Vivium Group, from the Netherlands November 5 – 8, grants we have received so far, 
future fundraising needs and our collaborative efforts with REAL Services on this project.  Karl 
Holderman will be covering programming as CHC’s lead on Milton and Mike Wargo will be 
covering fundraising, Helman-Sechrist Architecture, and the timeline for completion. 
 
OUT AND ABOUT 
 
I attended the National Hospice Executive Roundtable meeting October 6-8 in Clearwater, FL 
 
I attended Hospice Action Network and NHPCO Issues session meetings in Orlando FL on 
November 2-3. 
 
Several staff, including Sue Morgan, attended the NHPCO Interdisciplinary Team conference in 
Orlando, FL November 4-6. 
 
Several staff, including Craig Harrell and Mike Wargo attended the annual Medicine Ball for the 
Indiana University School of Medicine on November 9th. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS TO THIS PRESIDENT’S REPORT IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING 
THIS SECTION OF THE .PDF 
 
Dave Haley’s Census Charts. 
 
Karl Holderman’s Monthly dashboard summaries. 
 
Volunteer Newsletter for August, September and October 2019. 
 
Board Committee Opportunity Sheet 
 
Hospice News article, “Senators Introduce Bill on Hospice Quality, Transparency” 
 
NHPCO News Release regarding bipartisan legislation to enhance oversight of hospice 
 
Hospice News article, “MA Carve-in May Hurt Quality” 
 
Press release, “Center for Hospice Care Honors Veterans during ‘The Wall that Heals’ Event” 
 
VALPOLIFE.COM story, “Improving the Quality of Living at Center for Hospice Care” 
 
VerywellHealth article, “How For-Profit Hospices Compare to Nonprofit Hospices” 
 
Disrupt News article, Adult Day Industry Trending Toward For-Profit  
 
WSBT-TV news story of “Local Veterans have ‘Vet-to-Vet Café’ sessions once a month to talk  
 
Internal Medicare Compliance Committee Minutes of 08/22/19 
 

PAGE - 79



11/20/19 President’s Report – page 16 

 

HARD COPY BOARD ITEMS TO BE DISTRIBUTED AT THE MEETING 
 
Year to Date October 2019 CHC Financials. 
 
2020 CHC Budget 
 
Common Abbreviations (always handed out at board meetings) 
 
 
NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
Our next regular Board Meeting will be Wednesday, February 19, 2020 at 7:15 AM in 
Conference Room A, first floor at the Mishawaka Campus, 501 Comfort Place, Mishawaka, IN  
46545.  In the meantime, if you have any questions, concerns, suggestions or comments, please 
contact me directly at 574-243-3117 or email mmurray@cfhcare.org . 
 

# # # 

PAGE - 80

mailto:mmurray@cfhcare.org


All South Bend Elkhart Plymouth LaPorte
J 378 195 95 74 14
F 394 202 98 77 18
M 405 209 99 79 18
A 420 222 101 77 20
M 428 225 105 74 24
J 441 233 109 76 23
J 439 240 111 67 21
A 429 237 111 66 15
S 425 229 114 69 13
O 428 234 114 68 12
N
D

2019 YTD Totals 4187 2226 1057 727 178

2019 YTD ADC 419 223 106 73 18

2018 YTD ADC 395 210 89 83 13

YTD Change 2018 to 2019 24 13 17 -10 NA

YTD % Change 2018 to 2019 6.0% 6.0% 18.8% -12.4% NA

2019 ADC by Branch

South Bend 53%
Elkhart 25%

Plymouth 17%
LaPorte 4%

All 100%

Center for Hospice Care
2019 YTD Average Daily Census (ADC)

(includes Hospice House and Home Health)

53% 

25% 

17% 

4% 

South Bend

Elkhart

Plymouth

LaPorte

2019 YTD ADC  
by Branch 

PAGE - 81



350

360

370

380

390

400

410

420

430

440

450

J F M A M J J A S O N D

2019

2018

2017

2016

                     ADC 
YTD 2019 = 419 
        2018 = 394 
        2017 = 384 
        2016 = 399 

PAGE - 82



170

180

190

200

210

220

230

240

250

J F M A M

South
Average Daily Census

200

210

220

230

240

250

260

Average Daily Census

190

200

210

220

230

240

250

260

190

200

210

220

230

240

250

260

J F M A M J J A S O N D

2019

2018

2017

2016

South Bend 
Average Daily Census 

                    ADC 
YTD 2019 = 223 
        2018 = 208 
        2017 = 225 
        2016 = 228 

PAGE - 83



50

60

70

80

90

100

110

J F M A M J

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

J F M A M

Average

75

80

85

90

95

100

105

J F M A

                    ADC 

75

80

85

90

95

100

105

110

115

J F M A M J J A S O N D

2019

2018

2017

2016

Elkhart 
Average Daily Census 

                    ADC 
YTD 2019 =105 
        2018 = 91 
        2017 = 90 
        2016 = 96 

PAGE - 84



45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

J F M A

Average

50

J F M A

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

Average

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

J F M A60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

J F M A M J J A S O N D

2019

2018

2017

2016

Plymouth 
Average Daily Census 

                    ADC 
YTD 2019  = 73 
        2018  =  82 
        2017  =  69 
        2016  =  75 

J F M A M J J A S O N D

PAGE - 85



0

4

8

12

16

20

24

28

J F M A M J J A S O N D

2019

2018

            LaPorte 
Average Daily Census 

                   ADC 
YTD 2019 = 18 
        2018 = 13 

PAGE - 86



PAGE - 87



for the family. Children within 
our care can continue to receive 
treatment for their disease, and 
also benefit from palliative 
care, which focuses on quality 
of life.  

 
Sarah Sieh, So-
cial Worker 
As a social 
worker, I seek to 
support our fam-
ilies in many 

ways. I create a safe space in 
which to share. I want to hear 
the family’s journey and the 
child’s story, to allow the fami-
ly to share anything that may 
be hard for others to hear…. I 
provide support to siblings, and 
I listen to the parent’s worries, 
hopes and fears. We discover 
ways to cope. I am a sounding 
board for families and loved 
ones as they make hard deci-
sions.    

By Kristiana Donahue  
When I went in for my 20-
week ultrasound, our family 
was full of excitement and 
anticipation. We made pre-
dictions on whether we were 
going to have a boy or a girl. 
What we didn’t expect was 
the news we received. Our 
little girl had problems, and 
the prognosis we received 
was grim. I was silent as the 
shock of the news absorbed 
every ounce of me. I contin-
ued to carry our daughter 
amidst all the uncertainty, 
and I found myself dreading 
each ultrasound visit.  
 Many of the lessons 
I learned along that difficult 
journey have been used in 
my role as the Volunteer 
Recruitment and Training 
Coordinator at Center for 
Hospice Care. There is a 
Perinatal and Pediatric Com-
mittee that meets regularly 
to make sure we are provid-
ing the best support for fam-
ilies that are walking similar 
paths. Having a well-
prepared and compassionate 
support network makes a 
difference. There wasn’t 
much I could do to change 
my daughter’s circumstanc-
es, but I found that such a 
network allowed me to ask 
my questions and to cry. It 
also equipped me and my 
husband to have hard con-

versations 
with each 
other and 
our other 
children. I 
have held 
hope in one 
hand and 
dismal real-
ities in the 
other. I 
have fallen 
exhausted 
after hours of sitting bedside in 
the NICU. And while my story 
may not be everyone else’s sto-
ry, we may share experiences. 
Please know that at Center for 
Hospice Care, you will be sup-
ported by a compassionate and 
empathetic team of individuals. 
 Center for Hospice 
Care provides perinatal and 
pediatric palliative care. Perina-
tal palliative care is compas-
sionate support for parents and 
families who find out during 
pregnancy that their baby has a 
potentially life-limiting condi-
tion. Care focuses around the 
needs of the family in a holistic 
nature. This support is provided 
from the time of diagnosis 
throughout the baby’s life. Peri-
natal palliative care helps par-
ents embrace whatever time 
they have with their child and 
make it meaningful, memorable 
and family-focused.  Pediatric 
palliative care provides quality 
of life for the child and support 

C o m p a s s i o n a t e  S u p p o r t :  
P e r i n a t a l  &  P e d i a t r i c  P a l l i a t i v e  

C a r e  

I ns i de  t h i s  i s s ue :  

Welcome new       
Plymouth VC 

2 

Birthdays 2 

Mark Your Calendars 2 

In Loving Memory 2 

Volunteer Spotlight: 
Larry Milanese 

3 

Welcome to the Team 4 

Volunteer Needs 4 
 

Welcome New      
Volunteers 

4 
 

10 Years of              
Partnership 

5 

Training Reminder: 
Families at Death 

5 

Comments from Our 
Families 

5 

Compassionate      
Support, Continued 

6 

 
 
 
 

S e p t e m b e r  2 0 1 9   

Volunteer Newsletter 

Story continued on Page 6 

PAGE - 88

https://www.bostonglobe.com/staff/jwickersham?p1=Article_Byline


B i r t h d a y s  

9/22 
Wayne Fisher 
9/22 
Jim Rahilly 
9/23 
Lino Rodriguez 
9/24 
Sylvia Ford 
 
 
 
 

9/7 
Mary Perron 
9/8 
Mary Adams 
9/8 
Barbara Adcock 
9/10 
Molly Hepperle 
9/11 
Kathleen Hojnacki 
9/12 
Becky Donahue 

9/12 
Nancy Whipple 
9/14 
Cheryl Barker 
9/16 
Sharon Leamon 
9/16 
Max Rarick 
9/18 
Emma Mazurek 
9/21 
Judith Atkinson 

P a g e  2  

M a r k  Yo u r  

C a l e n d a r s  

 
11th Annual Bike Michiana 
for Hospice & 34th Annual 
Walk for Hospice 
September 8, 2019 
https://foundationforhospic
e.org/events/ 
 
Volunteer “Bring a Friend” 
Brunch 
September 11, 2019 
9:30am at the Plymouth 
CHC office 
Do you know any Veterans or 
Musicians that might want to 
join our team? 
Get to know our Plymouth 
Volunteer Team! 
 
NEW Volunteer             
Orientation 
Tuesdays & Thursdays,  
October 1, 3, 8, 2019 
9:00am-Noon 
October 10, 2019 
9:00am-3:00pm 
Mishawaka Campus 
Contact Kristiana Donahue, 
Volunteer Recruitment and 
Training Coordinator, at 
donahuek@cfhcare.org if 
you have questions.  
 

We are excited to wel-
come Kim Morrison 
who recently started as 
the new volunteer coor-
dinator in Plymouth.  
Hello! I am Kim Morri-
son and I am very excit-
ed to be a part of Center 
for Hospice Care! 
I’ve been married to my 
husband, Jamey, for 27 
years.  We both grew up 

in Plymouth, but moved 
to Culver about 15 years 
ago.  Jamey is a Super-
visor at Summit Manu-
facturing in Bremen. We 
have two amazing 
daughters. Mandy is 21, 
and is a Junior at Go-
shen College, where she 
is majoring in Account-
ing, and minoring in 
Music (Flute). Sarah is 
19, and is a Freshman, 
majoring in Nursing, 
minoring in American 
Sign Language, and 
playing on the Goshen 
College Volleyball team. 
I graduated from Go-
shen College in 1993 
with a Bachelor’s De-
gree in Music Educa-
tion. I spent 18 years 

teaching Elementary 
Music, but had to 
leave teaching after 
having a temporal 
lobectomy.  I’ve 
spent the last few 
years volunteering 
throughout the com-
munity.  I enjoy di-
recting  the Mar-
shall County Melody 
Makers, singing at 
the Wild Rose 
Moon, and attending 
my daughters’ con-
certs and games.  
I am very excited to 
be the Volunteer 
Coordinator  at such 
a wonderful organi-
zation! 

W e l c o m e  N e w  P l y m o u t h  V C  

PAGE - 89



V o l u n t e e r  S p o t l i g h t      
L a r r y  M i l a n e s e ,   E l k h a r t  

What volunteer work do you do and how 
long have you been a volunteer with 
CHC?  
I have been a volunteer with CHC since 
November 2014. I spend time with pa-
tients.  
Why do you volunteer with CHC?  
To get to know people and about their 
lives. I get to learn about their strengths, 
and sometimes weaknesses, in difficult 
circumstances.  Having some experience 
with illness and having spent time in a 

What do you like to do in 
your spare time? 
Nothing is better than do-
ing anything with Ethel.   
 
Tell me a bit about your 
family.  
Married 52+ years. We 
have four sons and are 
expecting our 10th grand-
child in August. Best of 
all is that they all live in 
this area.  

 
What talents/hobbies do 
you enjoy? 
I am addicted to trav-
el. We have been blessed 
to have traveled quite a 
bit. I also enjoy wood-
working and being out-
doors as much as possi-
ble.  I occasionally still do 
some advertising draw-
ings on the computer. 

nursing home, 
I sometimes have a some-
what different perspective 
on what folks are going 
through. It is very inter-
esting and fulfilling get-
ting to know people and 
spending time with them. 
 
What is your favorite 
food and why? 
Eggs Benedict. My wife 
has the best recipe ever.  
 

Where would you most 
like to go in the world and 
why? 
Italy, because of the art 
and it's a romantic coun-
try. All my grandparents 
are from Northern Italy. 
 
What is your favorite 
quote? 
“God is in charge of my 
life, I am in charge of my 
attitude.”  

Favorite movie? 
Romantic comedy, musi-
cals and Disney  
 

Favorite book and why? 
Westerns by Louis 
L’Amour. We have been 
able to spend considerable 
time on horseback in the 
Rockies riding and round-
ing up cattle. We like to 
“play cowboy”.  
 

Favorite music? 
I like many kinds of mu-
sic but easy listening 
most, both vocal and in-
strumental. My favorite 
song of all time is “I don’t 
mind being alone if I’m 
alone with you” by the 
Mills Brothers.  
 

Where are you from origi-
nally? 
Elkhart all my life except 
for time in the military. 

P a g e  3  

“Larry has been a 
volunteer with CHC 
since November 2014. 
He has a very 
compassionate heart. 
We are very fortunate 
to have him as part of 
our volunteer team!”  
 
Marlane Huber, 
Elkhart Volunteer 
Coordinator 
 

PAGE - 90



W e l c o m e  
t o  t h e  
T e a m  

Stacey Annoreno-
O’Brien 
South Bend IPU RN 

 

Natalie Barnes 
QA/Medical Records   
Coordinator 

 

Melissa Burpee 
Triage RN 

 

Jennifer Hall 
Triage RN 

 

Dr. Karissa Misner 
Hospice Physician 

 

Glenna St. Julien   
Plymouth RN 

P a g e  4  

V o l u n t e e r  N e e d s  

Hair Stylists/Barbers                                  
We are in need of some good hair styl-
ists/barbers. They would need to be 
available to make home visits for our 
patients. Currently these requests are 
remaining unmet. Please spread the 
word. 

Vietnam Traveling Wall, Plymouth 
Friday, Sept. 13- 3pm-7pm 
Staff a table and tent, hand out veteran 
booklet and Vietnam vet pins as appro-
priate. Help set up and tear down. 
Estimated volunteers needed: 2-4 
Contact Kim Morrison if interested. 

W e l c o m e  N e w  V o l u n t e e r s  

Help us welcome these new volunteers who finished their training this month. Please 
introduce yourself to these volunteers as they begin their service with CHC.  

Evan Curl 
LaPorte 

John Huber 
South Bend 

Wayne Fisher 
South Bend 

Pet Visitors                                      
We don’t have many pet visitor vol-
unteers at this time. We would love 
to add more pet visit volunteers to 
our team. Pets must be certified 
through a reputable company, such 
as Pet Partners or Therapy Dogs In-
ternational.   
 
Specialty Volunteers                 
Plymouth specifically mentioned 
needing specialty volunteers, such as  
people willing to do handyman ser-
vices.  
Please notify Kim Morrison if you 
might be interested.   

I n  L ov i n g  
M e mor y   

Our condolences and   
heartfelt sympathies go out 
to the following CHC        
volunteers  and families. 
 
Norah Ray,  South Bend  
Brother, Fred Toth,  
August 15, 2019  

PAGE - 91



P a g e  5  

C o m m e n t s  

f r o m  O u r  

Fa m i l i e s  

 

 When mamma was 
sick and was at Hos-
pice House, everyone 
there was also very 
nice. Mamma loved 
them and called them 
her very good friend. I 
would say yes to that 
too.  

 
 I believe the hospice 

care my brother re-
ceived helped him pass 
on as peacefully as 
possible. I would 
strongly recommend 
them in the future.  

 
 Thank you so much for 

your support in this 
most difficult year of 
grief. I particularly ap-
preciated the periodic 
newsletter that fit my 
progression through 
the year in a very time-
ly manner.  

 
 .Our family is very 

grateful for everything 
our Hospice team did 
for us and our family 
members. They are 
true super heroes.  

 

T r a i n i n g  R e m i n d e r   

Families at Death 
 
 Losses are different among family members although the same person 

died. 
 Individual differences among family members as to how they will 

grieve may be present. 
 Problems of competing needs may arise. 
 Differing expressions of grief may be present. 
 Past hurtful family relations may surface. 
 Closeness of family members can be both beneficial and detrimental. 
 Problems arising from protection such as lack of communication and 

overprotection. 
 Expression of emotions may be very varied. 
 Strong emotions may be present. 
 Family arguments may erupt. 

 

1 0  Y e a r s  o f  P a r t n e r s h i p  

On September 2nd, Kristi-
ana Donahue, Volunteer 
Recruitment and Training 

Coordinator along with 
Annette Deguch, Be-
reavement Counselor 
will be traveling to 
Uganda to present at the 
joint PCAU—Uganda 
Cancer Institute confer-
ence next week. They 
will be joining Mike 
Wargo, COO, Hospice 
Foundation, Lacey 
Ahern, Manager of Inter-
national Programs, Den-
is Kidde, International 
Program Coordinator 
and Cyndy Searfoss, 
Director of Collaborative 
Partnerships as they all 
celebrate the 10 year 
partnership of CHC and 

PCAU (Palliative Care 
Association of Uganda). 
Following the two day 
conference, we will be 
joining PCAU staff to 
travel to different loca-
tions and learn more 
about their work across 
Uganda.  
If you are interested in 
keeping up with their 
adventures, be sure to 
watch for updates on the 
CHC Facebook page:  
https://www.facebook.
com/Center4Hospice/  

PAGE - 92



C h o i c e s  t o  
m a k e  t h e  m o s t  

o f  l i f e . . .  

 Kathy Eash, 
Nurse Practitioner 
I am part of the 
medical team, com-
posed of a physi-
cian and two nurse 

practitioners, who care for our 
pediatric patients’ medical needs. 
I often work directly with the phy-
sicians and can perform develop-
mental exams and also manage 
any new conditions that may 
arise. Many times office visits can 
be avoided with the involvement 
of the CHC team. The pediatric 
team has more than 30 years of 
experience working in the pediat-
ric field. 

Abby Eicher, RN 
Case Manager 
Families get to know 
me well as I set a 
schedule with them 
and make visits to 

the home. My goal is to make sure 
the child is comfortable, and I will 
assess this each time I come. I 
will communicate with the child’s 
doctor or nurse practitioner to 
address any issues. I order sup-
plies and medications. I want to 
make sure the family is comforta-
ble caring for their child at home, 
so I can provide any education 
needed to make sure they feel 
equipped to do so. I will support 
the parents and family in any way 
I can and I’m available 24/7 for 
any question or concern. I am a 
Certified Hospice and Palliative 
Pediatric Care Nurse and have a 
passion to give these children the 
best quality of life we can.  
 

Holly Farmer,           
Bereavement          
Counselor 
I am a counselor that 
works with our perinatal 
palliative care families. 

I meet families where they are, offer 
support and I listen as they share their 
understanding of what is happening 
with their baby or babies. I will meet 
with them during their pregnancy to 
listen to their concerns, their fears, 
their sadness and at times their intense 
sorrow about their baby’s diagnosis. 
We can talk about the birth plan, look-
ing at their different options, and we 
can talk about how to tell others about 
what is happening. Providing educa-
tion on how to talk about the baby’s 
illness with siblings is another role of 
the counselor. When the family wants 
to create memories, I will encourage 
them to do so during the pregnancy and 
then offer ideas for how to do this when 
needed. Once their baby is born, I can 
provide support as needed during their 
baby’s life. After their baby dies, our 
support continues. We provide individ-
ual, family and group counseling for 
those families grieving the death of 
their baby or babies.  

Kristiana Donahue, 
Volunteer               
Recruitment and 
Training Coordinator 
I work with our volun-
teers to equip them for 
their role supporting 

families. We have a designated team of 
volunteers who have a passion for 
working with our pediatric patients and 
their families. Volunteers can support 

families in many ways, from being 
with the child while parents take a 
much-needed nap, to doing some 
light housework, to even walking 
the dog. Volunteers provide a lis-
tening ear, and can help with 
memory making items and activi-
ties. Volunteers are an extension of 
the Center for Hospice Care team 
as well as an extension of our own 
community. I know how important 
it was for our family to have indi-
viduals to walk with us on our 
journey. Our volunteers are willing 
to walk with our families on theirs.  

Arlin Cochran,  
Chaplain 
As a Chaplain, I care 
for the spiritual 
needs of our families. 
Spiritual care focuses 

on what is most important to the 
family and the child. I’m here to 
journey with the family as they find 
hope and meaning beyond their 
child’s illness. I am clinically and 
theologically trained and know 
that listening is the first step in 
learning from the child and the 
family.  Genuinely hearing their 
spiritual needs allows me to help 
them work through their pain so 
they can find true peace within the 
context of their own belief system. 

Pediatric Volunteers 
We have a recently formed group of volunteers who want to work with 
our pediatric patients. We need volunteers open to do any of the follow-
ing: home visits, scrapbooks, photography sessions and possibly more. If 
you’re interested in being a pediatric volunteer, please let your volunteer 
coordinator know.  

PAGE - 93



A  U g a n d a n  A l b u m :  
S n a p s h o t s  o f  C H C ’ s  E x c h a n g e  

V i s i t  

I ns i de  t h i s  i s s ue :  

Welcome new       
Volunteers 

2 

Birthdays 2 

Mark Your Calendars 2 

We’re Moving In! 2 

Volunteer Spotlight: 
Jim Rahilly 

3 

Welcome to the Team 4 

Volunteer Needs 4 
 

Staying HIPAA   
Compliant 

4 
 

Training Reminder: 
Documentation  

5 

Comments from Our 
Families 

5 

A Ugandan Album, 
Continued 

6 

 
 
 
 

O c t o b e r  2 0 1 9   

Volunteer Newsletter 

Story continued on Page 6 

The 2nd Uganda Conference on 
Cancer and Palliative Care  
CHC staff, Annette Deguch and Kristi-
ana Donahue, presented at the Uganda 
Conference on Cancer and Palliative 
Care in September. Annette shared 
about yoga and it’s physical benefits for 
grieving individuals. Kristiana present-
ed on essential tenants for an effective 
volunteer program. Hospice Foundation 
staff Lacey Ahern, Mike Wargo and 
Denis Kidde, chaired sessions and were 
an integral part of support for the inter-
national conference. CHC received an 
award for its vital 10-year partnership 
with the Palliative Care Association of 
Uganda (PCAU). 

Kawempe Home Care 
Kawempe is a partner organization of PCAU. Kawempe 
provides free medical care to disadvantaged people living 
with HIV/AIDS, TB and/or cancer. They have a children’s 
hostel for pediatric patients receiving cancer treatments at 
the Uganda Cancer Institute. They also empower their 
clients through an income-generating program. They do 
such wonderful work to care for those in need. Annette, 
pictured above, led the Kawempe staff in morning yoga. 
Staff begin each day with a prayer and announcements.  

Pictured above is a client working 
on a sewing project as part of 
Kawempe’s income-generating 
program. You can shop for their 
beautiful items online: 
https://kawempehomecare.org/shop

PAGE - 94



B i r t h d a y s  

10/25 
Janice Berger 
10/27 
Cindy Ward 
10/30 
Sharon Marshall 
10/30 
Kay Swett 
10/31 
Donna Kooy 
10/31 
Robert Putnam 
 

10/1 
Ann Baucus 
10/2 
Noreen Buczek 
10/2 
Sue Ermeti 
10/8 
Kathryn Bowyer 
10/8 
Reilley Knott 
10/11 
Don Zimlich 
 

10/13 
Joan Hunt 
10/15 
Charles Lynn 
10/15 
Carolyn Tihen 
10/18 
Hugh O’Donnell 
10/21 
Margaret Cunningham 
10/21 
Ted Stanley 

P a g e  2  

M a r k  Yo u r  

C a l e n d a r s  

 
NEW Volunteer             
Orientation 
Tuesdays & Thursdays,  
October 1, 3, 8, 2019 
9:00am-Noon 
October 10, 2019 
9:00am-3:00pm 
Mishawaka Campus 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 

We are very excited that 
the time has come for our 
South Bend staff to move 
to the brand new clinical 
building in Mishawaka 

the first week of October. 
VC, Debra Mayfield, will 
be in the Mishawaka of-
fice in the HR wing (this 
is not located in the new 

building).  Please be 
patient with staff dur-
ing this transition, as 
it can take a few days 
to get settled.  
The South Bend   
location will still 
house our IPU staff 
and patients. If you 
are an IPU volunteer, 
you will still be re-
porting to the South 
Bend IPU for a little 
while longer. We will 
keep you posted on 
the projected timeline 
for our IPU move. 
We are very excited 
about the move and 
look forward to the 
opening of the Raclin 
House soon!  

W e ’ r e  M o v i n g  I n !  

Faythe Lawson 
South Bend 

Help us welcome these new 
volunteers who finished their 
training this month. Please 
introduce yourself to these 
volunteers as they begin their 
service with CHC.  

W e l c o m e  

N e w     
V o l u n t e e r s  

PAGE - 95



V o l u n t e e r  S p o t l i g h t      
J i m  R a h i l l y ,   S o u t h  B e n d  

What volunteer work do you do and how long have you 
been a volunteer with CHC?  
I joined CHC training in 2005 and just completed 14 
years. I have done home visitations for a number of 
years, 11th Hour (to assist between the hours of mid-
night and 6:00am) and also the inpatient care unit 
(Sunday evenings 4:00-7:00pm).  
Why do you volunteer with CHC?  
I am retired, single and have time on my hands, which I 
use for service and ministry. It is my life and my calling 
at this time. I enjoy what I do! I feel qualified for it with 
the yearly CHC training and my past experiences.  
 

Board, Gardens at the 
Trinity Tower (where I 
live) and Center for Hos-
pice Care. Over the years 
I’ve received various 
awards for volunteer ser-
vice.  
Where are you from origi-
nally? 
I’m a New Yorker by 
birth. I was born in Oyster 
Bay, Long Island (home 
of Teddy Roosevelt), in 
1937, second of five chil-
dren. I went to St. 
Dominic’s grade school 
and stayed in Long Island 
for high school. I went to 
the University of Notre 
Dame as a seminarian and 
graduated in 1960. I com-
pleted my studies at Holy 
Cross College in Wash-
ington DC in 1964.  

Tell us a bit about your 
volunteer background.  
I like to volunteer because 
it has to do with my back-
ground as a part of my 
youth group in my home 
town, an altar boy at 
church and watching my 
parents volunteer in vari-
ous ways. I was involved 
in youth programs both in 
Kenya and Uganda. I was 
trained by St. John Ambu-
lance (a British-based 
First Aid/Nursing pro-
gram) as a volunteer bri-
gade member. I was 
trained in first aid and 
called upon to use these 
skills at national celebra-
tions, at horse races, at the 
Pope’s visits to Kenya, at 
the State House and other 
public events. I rose in 
rank first as a division 
officer, then City Corps 
Superintendent and final-
ly as Area Secretary. I 
was appointed to the na-
tional board of the bri-

gade and became one of 
the officers preparing and 
judging First Aid compe-
titions. Later I was trained 
by a group of nurses from 
England in home nursing 
skills. I, along with three 
other Kenyans, prepared 
and published the first 
Kenyan First Aid Manual.   
When I returned to the 
USA in 1984 for a 5 
month course at Notre 
Dame, I volunteered in 
the ER at St. Joseph Hos-
pital on Friday evenings. I 
returned from Africa in 
1996 and again began 
volunteering with Scout 
Troup 505, Audubon So-
ciety, Friends of Bendix 
Woods and Spicer Lake. 
After retiring I added 
Friends of Potato Creek, 
usher at the Morris Thea-
ter, tour guide at the Stu-
debaker Museum, ser-
vices in Loretto Church at 
Saint Mary’s College, 
Local Chapter 270 AARP 

P a g e  3  

“Jim’s passion for 
people and gentle 
personality make him a 
great fit for the hospice 
population.  His long 
term dedication CHC 
has truly helped this 
agency fulfill it’s 
mission to improve the 
quality of life for those 
we serve!”  
 
Debra Mayfield, 
South Bend Volunteer 
Coordinator 
 

PAGE - 96



W e l c o m e  
t o  t h e  
T e a m  

Nadia Beavers 
South Bend CNA 

 

James Cervantes 
Elkhart Maintenance    
Technician 

 

Chris Donahue 
Maintenance Coordinator 

 

Janet Harrell 
Triage RN 

 

Van Malcolm 
 Elkhart Case Manager RN 

 

Duane Rowley 
IT Service Desk Technician 

 

Judy Salmon 
South Bend IPU RN 

 

Stephanie Ufkin 
Nurse Practitioner 

 

Sarah Young 
PRN Referral Specialist 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P a g e  4  

V o l u n t e e r  N e e d s  

Elkhart Office 

 Home Visit Volunteers 

 Hospitality Volunteers 

 Hair Stylist/Barbers 

 Massage Therapists  

 Inpatient Unit Volunteers  

Seeking at least one volunteer in these 
areas: Nappanee, Middlebury, Shipshe-
wana and Goshen 

South Bend Office 

 Home Visit Volunteers 

 Hair Stylist/Barbers  

 Pet Visitors 

Plymouth Office 

 Home Visit Volunteers 

 Extended Care Facility Volunteers 

 Office Volunteers 

LaPorte Office 

 Home Visit Volunteers 

Additional Volunteer Needs for 
Entire Service Area 

 Spanish-speaking Volunteers 

 Willingness to travel across        
service areas 

PAGE - 97



P a g e  5  

C o m m e n t s  

f r o m  O u r  

Fa m i l i e s  

 

 When mamma was 
sick and was at Hos-
pice House, everyone 
there was also very 
nice. Mamma loved 
them and called them 
her very good friend.  

 
 I believe the hospice 

care my brother re-
ceived helped him pass 
on as peacefully as 
possible. I would 
strongly recommend 
them in the future.  

 
 Thank you so much for 

your support in this 
most difficult year of 
grief. I particularly ap-
preciated the periodic 
newsletter that fit my 
progression through 
the year in a very time-
ly manner.  

 
 Our family is very 

grateful for everything 
our Hospice team did 
for us and our family 
members. They are 
true super heroes.  

 

 
 

T r a i n i n g  R e m i n d e r   

Documentation Reminders 
Whether you are documenting in a chart in the ECF or on a time sheet, please 

remember the following: 
 Use only black ink 
 This is a legal medical document.  
 For the IDT Flowsheet in an ECF, do not leave any open lines. Draw a line 

to fill in a partial line. 
 Be clear & concise in documentation section; state facts only. 
 Document only what you see and do - NOT WHAT YOU THINK OR  

BELIEVE.  
 If an error is made, cross out with one line and initial next to error, then 

write  correct information. 
 Avoid the following words in documentation:  

-Appeared 
-Seemed 
-Looks or Looked 
-Think or Thought 
-Feel or Felt 
-More than 
-Less than 
-As usual 

 Remember that the time sheet can only include what the patient said or did 
and what the volunteer observed.  

 If you notice changes from each visit, you cannot write those comparisons 
on the time sheet. Volunteers can call staff and discuss these changes with 
staff.  

 Avoid the following: 
            -Providing any judgments, thoughts, assessments or feelings. 

 -Using "White Out" or scratching out words. 
 -Making comparisons about the patient.  

For example: The patient slept more today than last week  
Contact your volunteer coordinator if you have any questions or need assis-

tance with proper documentation. 

PAGE - 98



C h o i c e s  t o  
m a k e  t h e  m o s t  

o f  l i f e . . .  

Road to Hope 
Road to Hope is a documentary film that 
explores the unique challenges of orphaned 
children after caring for their dying parents in 
poverty-stricken areas of Sub-Saharan Africa. 
The Road to Hope program was created to 
provide support for these children by ena-
bling donors to sponsor a child for one year 
for only $550. This sponsorship covers costs 
associated with clothing, education, and 
healthcare needs. 
Denis Kidde (pictured left) laughs with a 
current Road to Hope child as we visited him 
at his boarding school in Jinja. Mike and 
Rose stand next to Stephen (pictured right), 
who is a resident physician at a hospital in 
Kampala and the first Road to Hope graduate. 
He is a wonderful role model to the many 
other children on the program.  

Mulago Training School for Nurses and Midwives 
Mulago School of Nursing and Midwifery is a public training 
institution owned by the Ugandan Government under the Min-
istry of Education and Sports. Pictured below is the current 
class that is participating in a Palliative Care Certification pro-
gram. This certification program takes a year to complete and 
each student is a current nurse looking to further their educa-
tion so they can provide palliative care in their home areas. 
This is a very important program as Uganda desperately needs 
more healthcare workers specialized in palliative care to ex-
pand the accessibility. We were able to greet the class and hear 
some students share why they are in the class. One student said 
that she wants to better learn how to provide palliative care so 
she can return home (which is in a remote part of Uganda) and 
better care for those in need in her own community.  

Hospice Jinja 
Hospice Jinja is another partner organization of PCAU and 
was founded in August 2005 by a small group of local volun-
teers, who saw the need for a palliative care service for pa-
tients with advanced cancer and HIV/AIDS. The service is  
coordinated from its center in Jinja, capital of the Bosoga 
region, which has a population of 4.5 million. The hospice 
team visits and networks with the 5 hospitals in the region 
and also visits outreach clinics near remote villages. Many of 
the patients they serve live in remote areas and have very 
limited resources. Many of their staff do home visits which 
take multiple days to complete because they are so remote. 
We were able to go with staff on a couple home visits to see 
the challenges they face and the wonderful work they do to 
provide compassionate palliative care.  

PAGE - 99



unteers are always 
equipped to perform 
skills. We want the fami-
lies to be confident in the 
volunteer and we want 
the volunteer to be confi-
dent in themselves.  
 
Who needs to complete 
Annual Skills             
Validation? 
It’s a matter of training 
level. Level 3 volunteers 
have been trained on 
how to perform hands-on 
skills, such as brief 
changes, transfers, posi-
tioning in the bed and 
more. Level 2 Plus, a 

What is Annual Skills 
Validation and why do 
we do it? 
We are very fortunate to 
have a volunteer pro-
gram that trains its vol-
unteers to provide 
hands-on care to our pa-
tients. Because of this 
level of training, volun-
teers are truly able to 
provide quite a bit of 
care during a respite visit 
in the home setting and 
they can assist our staff 
in the inpatient care 
units.  
CHC volunteers know 
that each assignment is 

quite unique. Even 
though volunteers are 
trained to provide care in 
the home, some patients’ 
families may or may not 
take them up on it and it 
may be only occasional 
that a volunteer will ac-
tually need to change a 
brief or perform another 
hands-on skill. As your 
CHC volunteer depart-
ment, we want to make 
sure that we provide you 
with not only the best 
volunteer orientation, but 
the best continued train-
ing and skills develop-
ment. Annual skills vali-
dation ensures that vol-

A n n u a l  S k i l l s  V a l i d a t i o n :  
W h a t  i s  i t ?  W h y  d o  w e  d o  i t ?  

I ns i de  t h i s  i s s ue :  

Welcome to the Team 2 

Birthdays 2 

In Loving Memory 2 

Are you in a Group? 2 

Volunteer Spotlight: 
Susan Danielson 

3 

Training Tips &  
Reminders 

4 

Volunteer             
Opportunities 

4 
 

Welcome New     
Volunteers 

5 

Comments from Our 
Families 

5 

Annual Skills       
Validation Continued 

6 

 
 
 
N o v e m b e r  2 0 1 9   

Volunteer Newsletter 

Continued on page 6 
PAGE - 100



W e l c o m e  

t o  t h e  

T e a m  

Antoinette Waite 
South Bend RN 

 
 

 

 
 

 

B i r t h d a y s  

11/22 

Bill Singler 

11/23  

Kathy Fuchs 

11/23  

Diane Huwaldt 

11/25  

Jennifer Lutz 

11/25  

Nellie Vels 

11/29  

Phyllis Hong 

11/30  

Phyllis Hutton Bowser 

11/1  

Nancy DeMaegd 

11/5  

Ingrid Hirte 

11/7  

Martha Jones 

11/7 

Kristie Sherburn 

11/8  

Susan Danielson 

11/8  

Karen Goodnough 

11/8 

Mary Murphy 

11/10  

Ruth Anne Gray 

11/10  

Kathleen Griffin 

11/11  

Rebecca Lanning 

11/17 

Jenny Cowsert 

11/18 

Nancy Jackson 

11/20  

Karen McCormick 

11/22 

Elizabeth Basket 

P a g e  2  

A r e  y o u  i n  a  G r o u p ?  

Lori Hight 
Admission Scheduling Assistant 

 

Kashawna Marshall 
South Bend CNA 

I n  L o v i n g  

M e m o r y  

 
Our condolences and heart-
felt sympathies go out to 
the following CHC volun-
teers who lost a loved one 
recently.  
 
Bill Singler, South Bend  
Wife, Carol Singler  
Monday, October 28, 2019 

Research shows that 
many people who 
regularly volunteer 
are involved in more 
than one organization 
or group. Are you 
involved in your 
church or religious 
organization? Are 
you involved in a 
civic group or com-
munity of some sort? 
To help recruit more 
volunteers across our 

service-area, we are 
open and willing to 
speak to many 
groups. It works best 
when our own CHC 
volunteers are al-
ready part of a group. 
Members of the 
group know and trust 
you. When we come 
to speak, you are 
welcome to share a 
few informal words. 
Consider asking your 

church or religious 
group, civic group or or-
ganization if they would 
like a speaker at their 
meeting or event. If you 
get a favorable reply, 
please contact Kristiana 
Donahue who will follow 
up. 
Thank you for helping us 
spread the word! 

PAGE - 101



V o l u n t e e r  S p o t l i g h t      
S u s a n  D a n i e l s o n ,   P l y m o u t h  

Why do you volunteer 
with CHC? 

I volunteer with CHC 
because of the        
wonderful organization 
that they are and       
because it is the right 
"fit" for me.  When I 
worked full time and 
was raising my    
daughter I didn't feel 

What volunteer work 
do you do with CHC? 
How long have you 
been  a volunteer with 
CHC? 
I am an office volunteer 
in the Plymouth        
office.  I have been  
volunteering since early 
Spring 2015. 
 

becomes a memory" - 
Dr. Seuss 
Favorite movie? 
Favorite movie still has 
to be "Dirty Danc-
ing".  Love the music, 
love the story line, and 
of course the dancing.  I 
used to love to 
dance!  So all these 
things put together in 
one movie makes it 
easy to watch over and 
over. 
 

 
 

 

like I had the time for 
any outside volunteer 
work.  When I retired it 
was always something I 
wanted to do to "give 
back", but it had to be 
the right "fit".  I looked 
at other organizations 
for volunteering, but it 
just wasn't right.  I had 
prior knowledge of 
CHC when my older 
sister died from cancer, 
so I knew of CHC and 
the wonderful help they 
are to patients and fami-
lies.  I found out later 
that they were looking 
for office volunteers so 
it all just came together. 
What is your favorite 
food? 
My favorite food is 
SHRIMP!  Growing up 
in Culver there were 
few restaurants back in 

"my day".  Friday 
nights most adults 
would congregate to the 
Corner Tavern which 
was well known for 
their fish, chicken, or 
shrimp.  My dad would 
often bring us home 
fried shrimp din-
ners.  Thus my love of 
shrimp began.  Need-
less to say one of my 
favorite restaurants is 
Red Lobster! 
What is your favorite 
quote? 
I do have a favorite 
quote, although 
many.  My daughter 
passed away three years 
ago and this one means 
the most. 
"Sometimes you will 
never know the value of 
a moment until it      

P a g e  3  

“Susan is a 
dedicated, 
dependable 
volunteer, and we 
are so fortunate to 
have her as part of 
our team at the 
Plymouth office!” 
 
Kim Morrison, 
Plymouth Volunteer 
Coordinator 
 

PAGE - 102



T r a i n i n g  T i p s  &  R e m i n d e r s  

We Honor Veterans Training 
As you know, Center for Hospice Care is a proud Level Four Partner in the “We Hon-
or Veterans Program” – a collaboration between the National Hospice and Palliative 
Care Association and the Department of Veterans Affairs. This program helps ensure 
that veterans receive the best possible and most appropriate end-of-life care possible. 
Until recently, Level Four was the highest level of partnership. “We Honor Veterans” 
created a Level Five partnership to continue to encourage partner organizations to in-
crease veterans’ outreach and programs. 
Center for Hospice Care is determined to achieve the Level Five designation, and that 
requires all volunteers to participate in training specific to veterans. The following 
training must be completed by all volunteers.  
 
Volunteers 

Review the NHPCO Standards of Practice for Hospice Programs (2019) 
View the videos:  

 15 Things Veterans Want You to Know                                                          
https://player.vimeo.com/video/226368040 (17:16) 

 A Tribute to Vietnam Veterans                                                                           
https://youtu.be/aVeBtnfAxP8 (4:48) 

 View the webinar                                                                                             
https://www.wehonorveterans.org/moral-injury-vietnam-veterans-webinar 
(1:28:45) 

 
To help CHC be able to file for our Level Five this year, volunteers should complete 
the training by Friday, November 22nd, 2019.  
 
We will also be providing screenings for those who would prefer to come into one of 
our offices.  
Elkhart Campus 
Friday, November 1, 2019, 1:00-3:30pm 
Friday, November 8, 2019, 10:00am-12:30pm 
RSVP to Marlane Huber at (574) 970-0401 or huberm@cfhcare.org by 10/30/19.  
 
Mishawaka Campus 
Wednesday, November 6, 2019, 1:00-3:30pm 
Friday, November 15, 2019, 9:30am-12:00pm 
RSVP to Debra Mayfield at (574) 243-3127 or mayfieldd@cfhcare.org by 11/4/19.  
 
Plymouth Campus 
Wednesday, November 6, 2019, 9:30-12:00pm 
RSVP to Kim Morrison at (574) 243-2411 or morrisonk@cfhcare.org by 11/4/19.  

P a g e  4  

Vo l u n t e e r  

N e e d s  

 
While we are always look-
ing for Home Visit Volun-
teers across the area, we 
also have a need for the 
following: 
 
South Bend 
 Hairdresser 
 Barbers 
 Pet Visitors 
 
Elkhart 
 Hairdressers 
 Barbers 
 
Plymouth 
 Hairdressers 
 Barbers 
 Veteran Volunteers 
 Office  
 Hospitality 
 Tuck-In 
 
LaPorte 
  Any opportunity 

PAGE - 103

https://www.wehonorveterans.org/sites/default/files/Vet_Related_Standards_Practice_0.pdf
https://player.vimeo.com/video/226368040
https://youtu.be/aVeBtnfAxP8
https://www.wehonorveterans.org/moral-injury-vietnam-veterans-webinar
mailto:huberm@cfhcare.org
mailto:mayfieldd@cfhcare.org
mailto:morrisonk@cfhcare.org


P a g e  5  

C o m m e n t s  

f r o m  O u r  

Fa m i l i e s  

 

 Everyone involved in my 
mother’s care were awe-
some. The nurse and 
chaplain made the transi-
tion better understood. I 
thank all of you truly 
from my heart.  

 
 The nurse was really 

“there” for us. She al-
ways took time to talk 
and answer questions. 
She was an invaluable 
resource during a diffi-
cult time. Thank you. 

 
 Our nurse was very kind 

and compassionate to my 
mom and very under-
standing to me. Always 
took time to listen to me 
and got what I needed to 
take care of my mom. 
Never appeared to rush 
in and out.  

 
 Your team by far was 

exceptional. I would not 
have been able to care 
for him at home without 
them. The kindness of 
the team exceeded any-
thing I could have asked 
you. Thank you for your 
love and support.  

 
 

 

W e l c o m e  N e w  V o l u n t e e r s  

Help us welcome these new volunteers who finished their training this month. 
Please introduce yourself to these volunteers as they begin their service with 
CHC.  

Lana Zeltwanger 
South Bend 

Carmen Sheets 
Elkhart 

Cathy Schiff 
South Bend 

Left to Right 
 
Dennis 
Thornton 
Plymouth 
 
Kathleen 
Matuszak 
South Bend 
 
Marti 
Skrzeszewski 
South Bend 
 
Steven Madar 
South Bend 

Left to Right 
 
John Couri 
South Bend 
 

Kate Brown 
South Bend 

PAGE - 104



C h o i c e s  t o  
m a k e  t h e  m o s t  

o f  l i f e . . .  

newer level for CHC 
volunteers, allows     
volunteers to help with 
mouth care and feeding; 
however, they are not 
trained to provide the 
other hands-on skills. A 
Level 2 Plus volunteer 
needs to review mouth 
care and feeding skills 
annually, which can be 
done at home with 
online training. We also 
provide opportunities to 
view the video at screen-
ing events. Level 3 vol-
unteers, those who are 
home visit volunteers or 
IPU volunteers, need to 
complete the annual skills 
validation once a year. 
Last year we offered it in 
July and scheduled ap-
pointments. This worked 
quite well and we were 
able to complete valida-
tions within a 30 minute 
time slot. If there are any 
skills that need retaught, 
we have the time to do so.  

New Changes in 2020 
While Annual Skills Vali-
dation is still relatively 
new, we have been work-
ing on developing it and 
making it the most effi-
cient system.  

Two Skills Validation 
Days                             
We will be coordinating 
two skills validation days 
a year: one in January and 
one in the summer. For 
snowbirds, you can keep 
an eye out for the summer 
date. For those who plan 
summer vacations, you 

can come to the one in Jan-
uary.    

For those of you who com-
pleted the skills validation 
day last summer, you have 
the option to attend the one 
in January or the one in the 
summer. You just need to 
complete one of them a 
year to meet your require-
ments.                                   

We will be having all of the 
skills validation days at the 
Mishawaka location. We 
have a permanent and beau-
tiful room in the new clini-
cal building! This houses 
all the supplies that we use 
for skills validation. Our 
volunteers also get a chance 
to see our beautiful new 
building!  

New Videos for Review  
We are working on a new 
set of training videos that 
we hope to be available in 
2020. These videos will be 
available for your review at 
your convenience, probably 
on our You Tube channel. 
When a volunteer receives a 
new assignment and learns 
that the patient may need 
some hands-on skills, the 
volunteer can review any of 
the videos that might pre-
pare them for that patient. 
We hope that this will be-
come a very valuable re-
source for our volunteers. 

Current IPU Volunteers 
Our first plan for IPU vol-
unteers was to validate 
them during the IPU shift. 
We tried that this past year 
and it isn’t working as well 

as we had hoped. It is quite 
demanding logistically. 
Therefore, moving forward 
we are asking our IPU vol-
unteers to take part in one 
of the upcoming skills vali-
dation days. Some of the 
IPU volunteers have al-
ready been validated this 
past year; however, some 
have not.  

During the Annual Skills 
Validation Day this past 
summer, I heard many posi-
tive remarks from the vol-

unteers completing it. Many 
thought that it was quite 
helpful and reassuring to 
them. This is exactly what 
it is meant to do.  

If you have any questions, 
please either contact your 
Volunteer Coordinator, or 
Kristiana Donahue, Volun-
teer Recruitment and Train-
ing Coordinator at          
donahuek@cfhcare.org.   

 

 
Bi-Annual Skills Validation Day 

 

Tuesday, January 14, 2020 
Location: Mishawaka Campus 

Time Slots: 30 minute time slots 
Time slots begin at 8:00am 

Last one at 5:30pm  
Lunch from 1:00-1:30pm 

 
To schedule your time slot, call or email 

Kristiana Donahue at  
donahuek@cfhcare.org 

Or (574) 286-1198 
 

Summer Skills Validation Day 
More Information to Come 

Continued from page 1 

PAGE - 105



Center for Hospice Care 
Committees of the Board of Directors 

 
The following committees of the CHC Board of Directors are currently available for 
board member participation. Contact the Chair of the Board if you are interested in 
joining one of these committees.  
 
Bylaws Committee 
The Bylaws Committee shall consist of the Executive Committee of the Corporation and 
other appointees by the Chair of the Board of Directors in such numbers as they deem 
necessary. It shall have the responsibility of reviewing the Corporation’s Bylaws at least 
once every three years.  
            
Milton Adult Day Services Advisory Committee 
The MADS Advisory Committee shall consist of appointees by the Chair of the Board of 
Directors and include caregiver and community representation. It shall have the 
responsibility to review the scope of services, quality of services, policies and 
procedures, service reports, evaluation findings, public relations/information materials, 
marketing/fundraising activities, and grant opportunities. The committee meets twice a 
year.   
 
Nominating Committee 
The Nominating Committee shall consist of the Executive Committee of the Corporation 
and other appointees by the Chair of the Board of Directors in such numbers as they 
deem necessary.  It shall have the responsibility of nominating candidates for positions 
on the Board, as well as for officers of the Board of Directors. The committee generally 
meets two to three times a year.  
  
Personnel Committee 
The Personnel Committee shall consist of the Executive Committee and other appointees 
by the Chair of the Board of Directors, and be chaired by the Chair of the Board of 
Directors.  This committee shall concern itself with the review and recommendations for 
approval of the Personnel Policies governing the staff of the Corporation. This 
committee meets at least biannually to review the Human Resources Manual and as 
needed. 
 
Special Committees 
Special committees may be appointed by the Chair of the Board of Directors as the need 
arises. Some of these committees include the Helping Hands Award Dinner Committee, 
and the Walk/Bike for Hospice Committee.   
 
 

PAGE - 106



PAGE - 107



PAGE - 108



PAGE - 109



PAGE - 110



PAGE - 111



PAGE - 112



PAGE - 113



PAGE - 114



PAGE - 115



PAGE - 116



PAGE - 117



PAGE - 118



PAGE - 119



PAGE - 120



PAGE - 121



PAGE - 122



PAGE - 123



PAGE - 124



PAGE - 125



PAGE - 126



PAGE - 127



PAGE - 128



PAGE - 129



PAGE - 130



PAGE - 131



PAGE - 132



PAGE - 133



PAGE - 134



PAGE - 135



PAGE - 136



PAGE - 137



PAGE - 138



PAGE - 139



PAGE - 140



PAGE - 141



PAGE - 142



PAGE - 143



 

Center for Hospice Care 
Compliance Committee Meeting Minutes 

August 22, 2019 
 

Members Present: Dave Haley, Greg Gifford, Karl Holderman, Mark Murray, Sue Morgan, Tammy Huyvaert, Vicki Gnoth 
Becky Kizer 

Absent: Craig Harrell 
 

Topic Discussion Action 
1. Call to Order  The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m.  
2. Minutes  The minutes of the 02/28/19 meeting were approved by consensus.  
3. Review of Home 

Health 
Compliance 
Plan 

 Page 8, Program Elements Outline – Add “national and” to state criminal history check. 
 Page 9, Code of Conduct – In the second paragraph change Department of Health and 

Human Services to OIG. Instead of listing where the compliance box is physically 
located at each office, make it more generic. Staff will be educated on where it is 
located at their office.  

 Page 22, Informed Consent – Added updates from the change in Indiana law in July 
2018 spelling out who can give consent for health care and in what order of priority.  

 Page 30, Destruction of Clinical Records – Deleted this policy, because that information 
has been added to the “Medical Record” policy.  

 Page 32, Ability to Pay – In the third paragraph, delete first sentence and change to 
“Patient/family will be requested to complete a Fee Assessment Worksheet.” It should 
be a part of the admission process.  

 Page 33, Fee Agreement – Add “In absence of a complete form, the patient/family will 
be billed at 100% applicable rates.”  

 

4. Review of 
Hospice 
Compliance 
Plan 

 Page 9, Program Elements Outline – Add “national and” to state criminal history check. 
 Page 20, Code of Conduct – In the second paragraph change Department of Health and 

Human Services to OIG. Instead of listing where the compliance box is physically 
located at each office, make it more generic. Staff will be educated on where it is 
located.  

 Page 27, Elder Justice Act Reporting – Added the phone numbers for the sheriff office 

 

PAGE - 144



Compliance Committee Meeting – 08/22/19, page 2 
 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
in each county in our service area.  

 Page 28, Destruction of Clinical Records – Deleted this policy, because that information 
has been added to the “Medical Record” policy.  

 Page 36, Informed Consent – Added updates from the change in Indiana law in July 
2018 spelling out who can give consent for health care and in what order of priority. 

 Page 39, Revocation – Added “Verbal revocations are not acceptable.” 
 Page 44, Fee Agreement – Add “In absence of a complete form, the patient/family will 

be billed at 100% applicable rates.” Also add “The social worker will complete a Fee 
Assessment Worksheet for any patient entering the Inpatient Unit.”  

 Page 46, Ability to Pay –In the third paragraph, delete first sentence and change to 
“Patient/family will be requested to complete a Fee Assessment Worksheet.” It should 
be a part of the admission process.  

5. OIG Reports  The NHPCO Regulatory Alert from July 9 on “Two Reports Released by OIG” was 
reviewed. Vicki G. noted on page 4 under 5c failure to provide needed services; failed 
to provide needed volunteer services to several beneficiaries. One beneficiary waited 
eight months for volunteer services. She will share this information with the volunteer 
coordinators so they are aware of the seriousness of this and what the OIG expects. We 
do show the surveyor proof of our efforts to recruit volunteers. Sue M. said when we 
reviewed the quality reports for the QI Committee she noticed we don’t report on 
volunteers. She will get with Vicki G. and Karl H. to look at what information should be 
included in the report.   

 One of the surveyors insisted if our initial order says a social work visit weekly, if the 
patient refuses a visit we have to get a cancellation order from the doctor. A surveyor 
also said we need to do OASIS for commercial insurance patients. We showed her the 
regs that say commercial insurance patients are exempt from OASIS.  

 Sue M. has a list of items she needs to follow up on after the surveys. As an agency, we 
need to decide what we are going to do going forward and what areas we can ignore.  

 

6. 2019 
Compliance 
Inservice 

 The annual compliance inservice is usually done at the September staff meeting. We 
could review the OIG reports and surveys and educate staff on the seriousness of it all. 
Mark M. could do it. The climate is completely different now. The years of going 6-15 
years without a deficiency are over. Audits are also increasing dramatically and what 
they are asking for is incredible. He can include the article of comments from hospice 

 

PAGE - 145



Compliance Committee Meeting – 08/22/19, page 3 
 

 

Topic Discussion Action 
CEOs on what the future looks like. Documentation so important and staff reporting any 
complaints they hear up the chain of command so we can respond appropriately.  

Adjournment  The meeting adjourned at 3:30 p.m. Next meeting in 
Feb. 2019 TBD 

 
 

PAGE - 146



 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 
FOUR 

 
NOMINATIONS 

PAGE - 147



 

 
 
 
 

2019 Nominations to the Board of Directors 
First three-year term to commence in January 2020 

 
Roland W. Chamblee, Jr.  

Attorney 
A lifelong resident of St. Joseph County, Roland W. Chamblee Jr obtained his law degree 
from the University of Notre Dame Law School in 1977.  He received his bachelor's 
degree from Notre Dame in 1973.  Roland was appointed magistrate of the St. Joseph 
County Circuit Court in 1989.  He became a judge of the St. Joseph Superior Court in 
1990 and served until 2013.  During his tenure on the Superior Court, he co-founded and 
presided over the St. Joseph County Drug Court and spent the past 15 years presiding 
exclusively over felony cases.  Upon retirement from the Bench, attorney Roland W. 
Chamblee Jr returned to the practice of law and now practices criminal defense in both 
federal and state courts in St. Joseph and surrounding counties. 

 
Kurt Janowsky 

Navarre Hospitality Group 
1981 Kurt Janowsky was graduating from Adams High School in South Bend, but he’d 
already been introduced to the foodservice industry.  At 14 Kurt took a job as a 
dishwasher at a local pancake house to help support his mother and siblings.  At 15 he 
was a cook at the popular Moonraker restaurant in downtown South Bend.  At 17, after 
High School, Kurt became an apprentice chef at Boca West Club and Resort in Boca 
Raton, Florida where he developed is love for higher culinary taste.  Returning to South 
Bend at 18, he became the executive chef at Knollwood Country Club, the youngest chef 
in Club Corporation's (the company that owned Knollwood) history.  At 20 years old, 
using a credit card for a cash advance down payment, Kurt purchased his first restaurant. 
The Loft, a favorite upscale restaurant in downtown South Bend, was Kurt’s first 
business and the year was 1983. He wasn’t old enough to drink, but owned one of South 
Bend’s most popular restaurant and bar!  Kurt’s passion for quality food and service grew 
as he started a partnership with Bruce and Pat Tassell, who owned The Ice House 
restaurant, in 1985.  It was a partnership that would last for over 30 years.  Together with 
the Tassells, Kurt purchased The Matterhorn in 1988, opened Baxter's in Elkhart in 1989, 
then joined them as a partner in operating The Emporium in downtown South Bend in 
1995.  Today, Kurt’s vision has lead to almost 20 upscale restaurants and bars in the 
Michiana area including a catering company and exclusive venues such as Palais Royale 
at Morris Civic Theatre, Crystal Ballroom at The Lerner in Elkhart, and many others.  
The chicy Café Navarre in downtown South Bend and AAA’s Four Diamond Award 

PAGE - 148



winning restaurant Artisan in downtown Elkhart are Kurt’s flagship fine dining 
restaurants. 
 

 
 
 

Slate of 2020 Officers  
 

Mary Newbold, Chair 
Jennifer Ewing, Vice-Chair 

Tricia Luck, Treasurer 
Jennifer Houin, Secretary 

Wendell Walsh, Immediate Past Chair 
Amy Kuhar Mauro, Hospice Foundation Immediate Past Chair 

 
 

PAGE - 149




